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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to
professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving
information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of
their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report
misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are
founded on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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CORPORATION INFORMATION
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT googd

Dear Shareholders ooooog

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of 0ddd0d0d00o0o0oooooomo
Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and 00O o0o0DoDOooooOOooo oo
its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”), | am do0o0o@moooOOoooooooo
presenting herewith the annual report of the Company for Ooooooooooooooooo
O

the year ended 31 December 2008. oon

For the year under review, the Group recorded revenue of 0000000 000D ~DOaDo
approximately HK$18,582,000, representing a growth of 18,682,0000 DODO ODOD OO OOGO
4.4 times as compared to approximately HK$3,447,000 O00000O0OD0000das447,0000 0
for the year ended 31 December 2007. The increase in 004400000000000000
turnover was primarily the result of the expansion into a ddooooooooooooooao
new market segment in trading of computerised smart oooooooon

sockets and accessories during the year.

When the new Board took over the management of the Oo0ooooooooooooooan
Company in July 2008, it was faced with the task of 0o0ooooooooooooooo
rectifying a situation whereby the high gearing ratio of the ddooooooooooooooao
existing business was besieged with declining operational 000000 oOO0oO0oOoooooOoooan
results. The focus of managerial action and resources 0o0oooooooOoooooooo
were devoted to rationalise the inefficient operations and ddooooooooooooooao
investments; and more importantly, to introduce new lines 0000000OO0ooooOOoooooo
of operation and business with stable and strong cash 0o0Do0oo0ooooooooooooog
flow contribution to the Group. During the year under 00o00oDOo0O0o0ooooDOoooooon
review, the Group has successfully expanded into a new Oo0ooooooooooooooan
market segment in trading of computerised smart sockets oooooooooooooooooo

and accessories; and the substantial contribution from
this operation for the only five months ended 2008 has
simply reflected the commitment as well as the ability of
the existing management team.

Furthermore, subsequent to the year end, the Group 0000000000000 oooan
entered into a disposal agreement with an independent Oo0ooooooooooooooan
third party which acquired the Group’s entire interest in odopoDo0ooooooooooooog
the information localisation business which has been 0odooDooOoOo0OopooooooOooao
dormant for more than two years. As a result of this doooDooooooooooooo
disposal, the Group has had the distressed business ooo0o0oDooooDooooo

disposed of, and made a clean break against any
potential liabilities arising from the bank loans therein.

4 Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

The Board is committed to reviewing and identifying all
possible options to provide future cash flow to the Group
and will consequently undertake a strategic review of our
business so as to alleviate and improve the current
financial status of the Group and to enhance operational
performance, and strengthen the cash flow position of
the Group. Furthermore, the existing controlling
shareholder has also committed to continue to support
the Group financially whenever necessary.

Looking ahead, despite of the adverse economic
conditions caused by the global financial tsunami,
nevertheless, the Board strongly believes that with the
commitment, ability of the existing management team and
full support from the controlling shareholder, the Group
could be back on the right track financially as well as
operationally very soon. Therefore, trading of the
Company’s shares could be resumed hopefully in near
future. Last but not least, the Board would like to
emphasise that we are always committing ourselves to
review all possible alternatives to create future value for
our shareholders and investors.

Cheung Yu Ping
Chairman

11 March 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND OOOODODODOO

ANALYSIS
BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group is principally
engaged in the provision of custom-made solutions,
trading of computer equipment, computerised smart
sockets and related accessories. The Group has
continuously expanded in variety of products and different
market segments to provide high quality products and
services to our customers. As a result, the revenue
generated from both the segments of custom-made
solutions business and trading business has grown
gradually during the year ended 31 December 2008.

When the new Board took over the management of the
Company in July 2008, it was faced with the task of
rectifying a situation whereby the high gearing ratio of the
existing business was besieged with declining operational
results. The focus of managerial action and resources
were devoted to rationalise the inefficient operations and
investments; and more importantly, to introduce new lines
of operation and business with stable and strong cash
flow contribution to the Group. During the year under
review, the Group has successfully expanded into a new
market segment in trading of computerised smart sockets
and accessories; and the substantial contribution from
this operation for the only five months ended 2008 has
simply reflected the commitment as well as the ability of
the existing management team.

Furthermore, subsequent to the year end, the Group
entered into a disposal agreement with an independent
third party which acquired the Group’s entire interest in
the information localisation business which has been
dormant for more than two years. Further details are
stated in the following section with the heading “Disposal
of information localisation business”. As a result of this
disposal, the Group has had the distressed business
disposed of, and made a clean break against any
potential liabilities arising from the bank loans therein. The
improved performance of the Group, financially as well as
operationally, has been apparent.

At the same time, the Group has undertaken a strategic
review on the operations in order to improve the current
business profile, and is committed to seeking all
possibilities to provide additional and sufficient cash flow
for the Group. As a result of which, trading of the
Company’s shares could be resumed hopefully in the
near future.

6 Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND [ D gooogdd

ANALYSIS

Disposal of information localisation business

There was no business operation and no revenue
generated from the information localisation business
during the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007. In
view that the competition of translation services in the
PRC is keen and such business is not in line with the
future development of the Group. On 2 March 2009, the
Group entered into an agreement with an independent
third party to dispose of its information localisation
business as set out in Note 9 and 19 to the financial
statements. A gain on the disposal of approximately
HK$12,020,000 has been realised.

Provision of custom-made solutions

The custom-made solutions are specifically designed and
developed for the specific needs and requirement of a
particular customer. The Group has successfully expanded
its custom-made solutions business to hotel segment in
PRC, and will continuously enhance our service quality in
order to extend the market penetration.

Trading of computer equipment, computerised
smart sockets and accessories

With the valuable contribution from the new management
team, in July 2008, the Group obtained an overseas
distribution right of certain newly developed computerised
smart sockets and related accessories. During the second
half of 2008, the newly developed business, trading of
computerised smart sockets, had contributed to the
Group a turnover and gross profit of approximately
HK$15,548,000 and HK$2,489,000 respectively.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall Review

For the year under review, the Group recorded a turnover
of approximately HK$18,582,000, representing an increase
of approximately 4.4 times as compared with
approximately HK$3,447,000 for the year ended 31
December 2007. The gross profit of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2008 was approximately
HK$4,073,000, representing an increase of 4.2 times as
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND OOOODODODOO

ANALYSIS

compared with approximately HK$779,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2007. The great increment in
turnover and gross profit was mainly contributed by the
newly developed business, trading of computerised smart
sockets.

As the Group has undertaken strategic changes during
the year under review, expenses in respect of legal and
professional services and manpower, etc. were increased
considerably. As a result, loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was approximately
HK$9,711,000, representing an increase of 80.6% as
compared with approximately HK$5,376,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

Financial Resource and Liquidity

As at 31 December 2008, the Group had bank balances
and cash of approximately HK$5,073,000 (2007:
HK$675,000), no outstanding bank loan and other loans,
as such loans had been classified as liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale (2007:
HK$15,475,000) and was disposed of on 2 March 2009.
The Group had loans from a shareholder and a former
shareholder with carrying value of HK$12,210,000 and
HK$1,146,000 respectively, which are unsecured, interest
free and not repayable before 31 March 2011 and 24
January 2011 respectively. Furthermore, the existing
controlling shareholder will provide continuing financial
support to the Group whenever it is necessary.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2008, the total assets of the Group
was approximately HK$34,939,000 (2007: HK$24,345,000)
whereas the total liabilities were approximately
HK$49,803,000 (2007: HK$30,274,000). The gearing ratio
of the Group, calculated as total liabilities over total
assets, was 142.5% (2007: 124.4%). However,
subsequent to the disposal of the information localisation
business (as set out in Note 9 and 19 to the financial
statements), the gearing ratio of the Group has been
substantially reduced to 103.1%; and the current ratio,
calculated as current assets over current liabilities, has
been greatly improved from 80.8% to 176.7% as if the
said disposal had taken place on 31 December 2008.
The Directors will keep taking various measures to further
improve the liquidity and gearing position of the Group.

8 Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONAND 000 O0OOOO

ANALYSIS

Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Directors consider that the Group has no material
foreign exchange exposure.

Material Acquisition, Disposal and Significant
Investment of the Group

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group did
not have any material acquisition, disposal and significant
investment.

Pledge of Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2008, the Group did not have any
substantial pledge of assets and contingent liabilities.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008.

CHANGE OF CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

On 26 May 2008, Hong Sheng Group Limited has
become the new controlling shareholder of the Group,
which own an aggregate of 142,651,965 issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2008, representing
approximately 71.33% of total issued share capital of the
Company. Details of the transaction have disclosed in the
circular dated 13 June 2008.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION AND
REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2008, the Group employed 8 staff
(2007: 10 staff). The staff cost (including directors’
remuneration) was approximately HK$3,671,000 for the
year under review (2007: HK$2,149,000). Remuneration is
determined by reference to market terms and the
performance, qualification and experience of individual
employee.

The Group provides benefits in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations including the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme of Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVE.RNANCE
REPORT

The Company is committed to maintaining corporate
governance of high standards and quality procedures.
The Company has put in place governance practices with
emphasis on the integrity to shareholders and quality of
disclosure, transparency and accountability to
shareholders for the sake of maximising returns to
shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company has complied with the code provisions set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the year ended 31 December 2008
except for the deviations from code provisions A.2.1
which is explained in the following relevant paragraph.
Below are the major corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company with specific reference to the
Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the required standard of
dealing set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules (the “Required Standard”) as the code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors of the
Company and has complied with the Required Standard.
A copy of the Required Standard is sent to each Director
of the Company upon appointment. The Company had
made specific enquiry of all its Directors, each of the
Directors of the Company confirmed his compliance with
the Required Standard throughout the year ended 31
December 2008.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling of
the Company, overseeing as well as the supervision of its
business, approval of strategic plans and monitoring the
Company’s performance. The Board delegates the day-
to-day operations to the executive Directors and senior
management, while reserving certain key matters for its
approval.

1 O Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2008, the
board of Directors (the “Board”) consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors that was more than
one-third of the Board. As at 31 December 2008, the
Board comprised six Directors, of which three were
executive Directors namely Mr. Cheung Yu Ping, Mr. Chan
Chi Chiu Henry and Mr. Lee Ah Sang; and three were
independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Jin
Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho and Mr. Chan Wai Fat. There
is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst the Directors.

The Board has the necessary skills and experience
appropriate for discharging their duties as Directors in the
best interests of the Company and that the current board
size is adequate for its present operations. Each of the
Directors keeps abreast of his responsibilities as a
Director of the Company and of the conduct, business
activities and development of the Company.

Members of the Board met on a regular basis and on ad
hoc basis to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. There
were ten board meetings held during the year 2008.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 000000

REPORT

Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings held

during the year:

Executive Directors
oooad

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)
ooooooooooooon
Mr. Chan Chi Chiu Henry
(Vice Chairman)
oooooooooo
Mr. Lee Ah Sang
ooooo
Mrs. Tinna Chan Yee
oooood
Mr. Henry Dicker Yee
(Chief Executive Officer)
ooooooooooon
Mrs. Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed
Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed O
Mr. Tan Shu Jiang
ooooo

Independent Non-Executive Directors

goooobogd

Mr. Jin Guangjun
ogoogao

Mr. Law Kin Ho
ooooad

Mr. Chan Wai Fat
ogoogao

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
ooooad

Mr. Ronald Garry Hopp
Ronald Garry HoppO O
Mr. Yip Tai Him
ooooad

00
Attendance
ogooo
(appointed on 14 July 2008) 5/5
oooooooooooooooao
(appointed on 14 July 2008) 4/5
oooooooooooooooOo
(appointed on 2 October 2008) 2/3
doooooooooooogo
(resigned on 14 July 2008) 5/5
Joooooooooooogoo
(resigned on 14 July 2008) 5/5
goodooooooooonod
(resigned on 14 July 2008) 4/5
doo0ooo0oooooooogo
(resigned on 14 July 2008) 0/5
goooooooooooonod
(appointed on 14 July 2008) 2/5
odooooooooooooooao
(appointed on 14 July 2008) 3/5
pgoooooooobooooooaad
(appointed on 14 July 2008) 3/5
odooooooooooooooao
(resigned on 14 July 2008) 4/5
goooooooooooonod
(resigned on 14 July 2008) 5/5
doo0oooooooooogo
(resigned on 14 July 2008) 2/5

ggooogogoobobobooobb
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping is the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. Pursuant to A.2.1 of
the Code, The roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Board considers that vesting
the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer in
the same person will not impair the balance of power
and authority between the Board and the management of
the Company. The Board also believes that the current
structure provides the Company with strong and
consistent leadership and allows for effective and efficient
planning and implementation of business decisions and
strategies. It is in the best interest of the Group to
maintain the current practice for continuous efficient
operations and development of the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is entrusted with the duty to put in place a
proper corporate governance structure of the Company. It
is primarily responsible for setting directions, formulating
strategies, monitoring performance and managing the
risks of the Group. Under the Board, there are currently
three subcommittees, namely Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee.
Audit committee and Remuneration committee perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective
terms of reference and assist the Board in supervising
certain functions of the senior management. Nomination
committee assists the Board in nominating candidates for
directorship, reviewing the size and composition of the
Board and making recommendation to the Board on
appointment of directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with a
specific written terms of reference.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Group’s
policy and structure for remuneration of Directors and
senior management and determining the specific
remuneration packages of directors and senior
management of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

REPORT

As at 31 December 2008, the Remuneration Committee
comprises four members with a majority of whom are
independent non-executive Directors,
Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho, Mr. Chan Wai Fat and Mr.
Cheung Yu Ping. The Committee
independent non-executive Director, Mr. Jin Guangjun.

The Remuneration Committee is scheduled to meet at
least once a year. One meeting was held during the
financial year ended 31 December 2008. The attendance
of each member is set out as follows:

Attendance of individual members at Remuneration
Committee meeting held during the year:

is chaired by an

namely Mr. Jin

gdn
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oooog

Independent Non-Executive Directors

gooooobd

Mr. Jin Guangjun (Chairman)
ooooooooo

Mr. Law Kin Ho

ooooo

Mr. Chan Wai Fat
ooooo

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee (Chairman)
Oo0o0oooooo

Mr. Ronald Garry Hopp
Ronald Garry Hoppd O

Mr. Yip Tai Him

oggoogao

Executive Director
oooad

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping
ooooo

(appointed on 14 July 2008)
ooooooooooogooon
(appointed on 14 July 2008)
oooooooooooooooon
(appointed on 14 July 2008)
0oooooooooooooon
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
o0ooDooooooooooo
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
gdoootoouoooooooan
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
ooooooooooooooo

(appointed on 14 July 2008)
odooooooooooooooao
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Directors is decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the market
terms, individual experiences, duties and responsibilities.

Directors’ emoluments comprise payments to Directors by
the Company and its subsidiaries in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries. The amounts paid to each Director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 are set
out in Note 11 to the financial statement.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprised four members with
a majority of whom are independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Jin Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho, Mr.
Chan Wai Fat and Mr. Cheung Yu Ping. The Committee
is chaired by an independent non-executive Director, Mr.
Jin Guangjun. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for nominating potential candidates for directorship,
reviewing the nomination of directors and making
recommendations to the Board on such appointments.
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CORPORATE GOVE.RNANCE
REPORT

The Nomination Committee is scheduled to meet at least
once a year for the review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board. In addition, the Nomination
Committee also meets as it is required to consider
nomination related matters. One meeting was held during
the financial year. The attendance of each member is set

Joggod
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gogooooo

out as follows:

Attendance of individual members at Nomination
Committee meeting held during the year:

gooog

Independent Non-Executive Directors

gooooobg

Mr. Jin Guangjun (Chairman)
ooooooooo

Mr. Law Kin Ho

ooooo

Mr. Chan Wai Fat

oggoogao

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
oggoogao

Mr. Ronald Garry Hopp (Chairman)
Ronald Garry HoppOd OO 0 0 O
Mr. Yip Tai Him

ooooo

Executive Director
oooog

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping
oggoogao

(appointed on 14 July 2008)
0o0ooooooooooooon
(appointed on 14 July 2008)
00o0oooooooooooon
(appointed on 14 July 2008)
gdoooooooooooodd
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
ooooooooooooooo
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
ooooooooooooooo
(resigned on 14 July 2008)
ooooooooooooooo

(appointed on 14 July 2008)
gdoooooooooooodd

1 6 Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008

gdodooououooooooobobobo

Attendance Percentage

googn

1/1

1/1

1/1

N/A
Oo00

N/A
oonO

N/A
EREEN

1/1

g

100%

100%

100%

N/A
Oo00

N/A
oonO

N/A
EREEN

100%



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
REPORT

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Under its terms of reference which are aligned with the
code provisions set out in the Code, the Audit Committee
is set up based on the guidelines recommended by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants to
evaluate the overall effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management frameworks, to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and other financial reporting matters and ensure the
completeness, accuracy and fairness of the financial
statements, to monitor compliance with statutory and
listing requirements and to oversee the relationship with
the external auditors.

The Audit Committee comprised three members
throughout the year ended 31 December 2008. At least
one member has an appropriate professional qualification
or accounting or related financial management expertise.
The Audit Committee reviews the quarterly, interim and
annual reports before submission to the Board. The Audit
Committee focuses not only on the impact of the
changes in accounting policies and practices but also on
the compliance with accounting standards, the GEM
Listing Rules and the legal requirements in the review of
the Company’s quarterly, interim and annual reports.

Senior representatives of the external auditors, executive
Directors and senior executives are invited to attend the
meetings, if required. Each member of the Audit
Committee members had unrestricted access to the
Group’s external auditors and the Management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE oougond

Percentage

The Audit Committee met five times during the year and ooooooooooooooooag
the attendance of each member is set out as follows: 0o0o0oOooOooon
Attendance
ooon

Independent Non-Executive Directors

goooobd

Mr. Jin Guangjun (Chairman)
ooooooooo

Mr. Law Kin Ho

oggoogao

Mr. Chan Wai Fat

ooooo

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
ooooo

Mr. Ronald Garry Hopp (Chairman)
Ronald Garry HoppO OO [0 [0 [0
Mr. Yip Tai Him

ooooo

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Company reviews the appointment of an external
auditor on an annual basis including a review of the audit
scope and approval of the audit fee. During the year, the
fee payable to the Company’s external auditor for the
annual audit amounted to HK$480,000 and a fee of

(appointed on 14 July 2008) 2/3
oooooooooooooooon

(appointed on 14 July 2008) 3/3
ooooooooooogoooon

(appointed on 14 July 2008) 3/3
godooooooooooodd

(resigned on 14 July 2008) 1/2
ooooooooooooooo

(resigned on 14 July 2008) 1/2
ooooooooooooooo

(resigned on 14 July 2008) 2/2

ggooogogoooboooobn

oogn

HK$150,000 has been paid for non-audit related activities. ooo
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE gougond
REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK Oo0oooooon
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Ooooooooooooooooon
Group’s internal control systems. The internal control dopoDddodoooooooooog
system includes safeguard of the interest of shareholders ooooooooo

and the Group’s assets.

During the year, the Board had conducted a review of doooDoooooooooooog
the system of internal control to ensure the effectiveness 000000 o0oO0O0ooooooooao
and adequacy of the system. The Board will continue to Oo0ooooooooooooooao
carry out regular review on the internal control system. 0dooOoOoOooooooooooao
The Group will constantly improve and strengthen its 0o0ooooooooooooooo
corporate control with reference to changes in the oooono

operating environment in order to enhance its corporate

governance and safeguard the interests of its

shareholders.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS POLICY Oo0oooooano

During the year, related party transactions are periodically O0o0o0o0o0obO0oO0oOooooooon
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee. ooooooon

INVESTOR RELATIONS O0o00n0

The Company uses two-way communication channels to 0o0D0D0o0oDoDo0oooooooooaog
account to shareholders and investors for the 0o0ooooooooooooooao
performance of the Company. All the shareholders have OdodobOOooOOoOoOogozo0OoonOano
received not less than 20 clear business days’ notice of O0o000o0ObO0oOO0oO0oooooooaon
annual general meeting at which Directors are available to Oo0o0o0oooOoooooooooo
answer questions on the business. Extensive information 0dopoDo0ooooooooooooag
about the Group’s activities is provided in its annual 000o0ooooO0oo0ooooooooan
report, interim report and quarterly reports which are sent Oo0ooooooooooooooao
to shareholders and investors. The Company’s 00000 0Owww.aurumpacific.com.hk
announcements, press releases and publications are oono

published and are also available on the GEM website and

on the Company’s website at www.aurumpacific.com.hk.

In order to provide effective disclosure to shareholders Oo0ooooooooooooooao
and investors and to ensure they all receive equal access O0o00D0oO0oO0oooOoOoOoooooan
to the same information at the same time, information 0o0Do0oo0oDooooooooooo
considered to be of a price sensitive nature is released Oooooooooooooon

by way of formal public announcement as required by the
GEM Listing Rules.

ooooooooono ooooooo 19



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PROFILES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping (0 O0O), aged 51, has been
appointed as an executive Director, the chairman and the
chief executive officer of the Company with effect from
14 July 2008. He has extensive experience in consultancy
business of energy, information technology related
projects and property investment in the PRC. He
graduated at Harbin Institute of Technology, the PRC with
a degree in construction engineering. Mr. Cheung has
been operating his consultant business with offices both
in Shenzhen and Hong Kong. Prior to starting his own
business, he was a public servant and vated as a senior
engineer in the PRC from 1982 to 2000, where extensive
connections and experience in the industry were
developed. Currently, he is also an adjunct professor in
the Shenzhen Graduate School of Harbin Institute of
Technology.

Mr. Chan Chi Chiu Henry (O O 0O), aged 37, has been
appointed as an executive Director and authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 14 July
2008. He is currently the vice chairman of the Company.
He has been involved in the finance industry and
information technology industry for more than 13 vyears.
He graduated with Master Degree of Business
Administration and Master Degree of Money, Banking and
Finance from University of Nottingham and University of
Birmingham, United Kingdom respectively and an
Executive Master Degree' of Business Administration from
Tsinghua University, PRC. Mr. Chan is appointed as
District Councillor of Tai Po district, Hong Kong for the
period commencing from 2008 to 2012.

Mr. Lee Ah Sang (O 0 O), aged 45, has been appointed
as an executive Director of the Company with effect from
2 QOctober 2008. He is an experienced financial market
practitioner who has worked in the financial field for more
than 20 years. Mr. Lee was a key employee with the
securities arm of one of the largest Chinese banks in
Hong Kong. Mr. Lee joined the investment arena before
the unification of the four stock exchanges, and is now
the general manager and an executive director of a local
securities company. Mr. Lee is a licensed Responsible
Officer with Securities and Futures Commission and he is
also a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Securities.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PROFILES

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jin Guangjun (0 0O0O), aged 48, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 14 July 2008. He has extensive experience in
the field of civil engineering and architecture. He
graduated with a Doctor of Philosophy in architecture
from Tongji University, China, and a Master Degree in
architecture from University of Harbin, PRC and
Massachusetts Institute of Technology, USA. Currently, Mr.
Jin is an executive dean and professor in the Shenzhen
Graduate School of Harbin Institute of Technology.

Mr. Law Kin Ho (O O O), aged 41, has been appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from
14 July 2008. He graduated with a Bachelor’'s degree
from Hong Kong Baptist University majoring in accounting.
He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, United Kingdom. Mr.
Law is currently practicing as a certified public accountant
in Hong Kong. He has years of experience in the field of
accounting, audit and taxation, and worked for an
international accounting firm and Stock Exchange in Hong
Kong. Mr. Law is also an independent non-executive
director of Coastal Greenland Limited, a company listed
on the main board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong
(stock code: 1124).

Mr. Chan Wai Fat (D 0O0O), aged 41, has been
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 14 July 2008. Mr. Chan is currently a Senior
Vice President of a securities house in Hong Kong. Mr.
Chan holds a bachelor degree of commerce from The
University of Western Australia and a master degree of
business administration from Deakin University, Australia.
He has years of experience in compliance, accounting
and financial management in securities industry and has
worked for international accounting firms and listed
company in Hong Kong. He is a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a Certified
Practising Accountant of CPA Australia.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT PROFILES

COMPANY SECRETARY, QUALIFIED
ACCOUNTANT AND AUTHORISED
REPRESENTATIVE

Ms. Wong Bing Ni (00O O), has been appointed as
company secretary, qualified accountant and authorised
representative of the Company with effect from 4 August
2008. Ms. Wong is an associate member the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators. She holds a master
degree in Professional Accounting and she has years of
experience in accounting and financial management in
listed companies in Hong Kong.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS goouogd

The Directors hereby present their annual report together OooooOooooooooooao
with the audited financial statements of the Group for the Oo0ooooooooooooooan
year ended 31 December 2008. ooooooo

SUSPENSION OF TRADING Oo0ono

Trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock do0oo0oooooooooooooo
Exchange has been suspended from 22 March 2007 and Oo0o0ooDo0oooooooooooao
will remain suspended until further notice. Oooooooooono

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME Oo0oooad

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Ooooooooooooooooon
extraordinary general meeting held on 16 October 2008 ooooooooooogoooog
and issuance of the Certificate of Incorporation on Oo0ooooooooooooooon
Change of Name by the Registrar of Companies in the Ooooooooooooooooo
Cayman lIslands and the Registrar of Companies in Hong dooDooooooooooooog
Kong on 17 October 2008 and 12 November 2008 0O OO0 O O 0O 0O b oos&b
respectively, the name of the Company has been changed International Development Group Limited
from “S & D International Development Group Limited O gboobooboobooboooo
doodoooopoooon0” to “Aurum  Pacific (China) O Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limitedd O
Group Limited DO O QOQOOOOOO. oooooooond

The stock short name, under which the shares of the 0dopoDooooDoOoooooooog
Company be traded on GEM, has been changed to 00 AURUM PACIFICO O 0D OOO O O O
“‘“AURUM PACIFIC” in English and “O00 00" in Chinese oo omooooooogogao
with effect from 24 November 2008. oooooooao

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES o B A

The principal activity of the Company is investment Oo0oooOoooooooooooo
holding while the Group is principally engaged in the Oo0ooooooooooooooan
provision of custom-made solutions, trading of computer 0o0ooooDooooooooooo
equipment, computerised smart sockets and related ooono

accessories during the year.

The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set ddooooooooooooooo

out in Note 16 to the financial statements. O 0160
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the financial year under
review is as follows:

oggod

gooboggdo

gobooooboooboboooobo
ooboooboooobobooooobo
oogd

Percentage of
the Group’s total

oooooooooo
Sales Purchases

0o 0o
The largest customer oood 83.7%
Five largest customers in aggregate oooooo 98.5%
The largest supplier oooon 91.2%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate oooooono 100%

During the year ended 31 December 2008, none of the
Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company (who to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group and the state of the Group’s
and the Company’s affairs for the year ended 31
December 2008 are set out in the financial statements on
pages 42 to 127.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2008.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2008, the Company did not have any
reserves available for distribution to equity holders of the
Company.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in Note 14 on the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the financial year are set out in Note 22
on the financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS

The changes of Directors during the financial year and up

to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
ooood

Mr. Cheung Yu Ping (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

oooooooooooooo

Mr. Chan Chi Chiu Henry (Vice Chairman)
ooooooogoon

Mr. Lee Ah Sang

ooooo

Mrs. Tinna Chan Yee

ooooood

Mr. Henry Dicker Yee (Chief Executive Officer)
ooooooooonn

Mrs. Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed

Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed O

Mr. Tan Shu Jiang

ooooo

Independent Non-Executive Directors
ooooogo

Mr. Jin Guangjun
ooooo

Mr. Law Kin Ho
oggoogao

Mr. Chan Wai Fat
ooooo

Mr. Chan Cheong Yee
ooooo

Mr. Ronald Garry Hopp
Ronald Garry Hoppd O
Mr. Yip Tai Him
ooooo
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 108 (A) of the Company’s
articles of association, one-third of the Directors shall
retire at each annual general meeting from office by
rotation. Further, according to article 112 of the articles of
association of the Company, any director appointed by
the Directors to fill a casual vacancy in the Company
under that article shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting and shall then be eligible
for re-election at the meeting.

In accordance with Article 112, Mr. Cheung Yu Ping, Mr.
Chan Chi Chiu Henry, Mr. Lee Ah Sang, Mr. Jin
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2008, the interests and short
positions of the Directors and the chief executive of the
Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (i) which were required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (i) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

(i) Long positions in the shares of the
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Company
Approximate
Number percentage of
Name of Directors Nature of Interest of Shares shareholding
oooo
gooo oooo gooo ooo
Cheung Yu Ping Interest of a controlled corporation 142,651,965 71.33%
(Note 1)
ooo oooood
oooio
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(ii) Long positions in the shares of associated (i) JO0DoDoODOO0oO0O0oOad
corporation

Approximate

Name of associated Number percentage of
Name of Directors Corporation Nature of Interest of Shares shareholding
ooon
ooon OO0oooo ooo0o ooon ooo
Cheung Yu Ping Hong Sheng Group Limited Interest of a controlled 510 51%

corporation (Note 1)

ooo OO0o00ooooao 0o0oooooooig

Note: ooo
1. The interest in the Shares of Cheung Yu Ping was held 1. goooooooooooooo
through Hong Sheng Group Limited, the entire issued goooooooopooooooo
share capital of which was beneficially and ultimately ooooooooooooooo
owned as to 51% by Cheung Yu Ping and as to 49% by I I W A R 53 B

Cai Dongmei. 49%0
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND
OTHER PERSONS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO
DISCLOSE THEIR INTEREST

Substantial Shareholders

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31
December 2008, the following persons, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, had an
interest or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were expected to
be directly or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights
to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group:
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Number of Approximate
Shares percentage of
Name Capacity (Note 1) shareholding
oooo oood
oo oo oootd ooo
Hong Sheng Group Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 142,651,965 (L) 71.33%
oooooood oooooooozo
Cai Dongmei Interest of a controlled corporation 142,651,965 (L) 71.33%
(Note 2)
ooo 0o0ooooooozo
Simplex Technology Investment  Beneficial owner 16,896,363 (L) 8.45%
(Hong Kong) Co. Limited (Note 3)
(“Simplex”)
dooooooooood 00o0o0o0ooso
oom
Shanghai Jiaoda Industrial Interest of a controlled corporation 16,896,363 (L) 8.45%
Investment Management (Note 3)
(Group) Limited
("Jiaoda Industrial Group”)
000000000 OoooonD boooo0oOoOsno
oood
Moooooomm
Shanghai Jiao Tong University Interest of a controlled corporation 16,896,363 (L) 8.45%

(Note 3)
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Notes:
1. The letter “L” denotes the entity’s interests in the Shares.
2. The interest in the Shares of Cai Dongmei was held through

Hong Sheng Group Limited, the entire issued share capital of
which was beneficially and ultimately owned as to 51% by
Cheung Yu Ping and as to 49% by Cai Dongmei.

3. The interest in the Shares are held through Simplex, the entire
issued share capital of which was beneficially owned by Jiaoda
Industrial Group. The registered capital of Jiaoda Industrial Group
was owned as to 96.735% by Shanghai Jiao Tong University and
3.265% by Shanghai Jiaoda Enterprise Management Centre (O O
0O0oO0opoooog), an entity wholly owned by Shanghai Jiao
Tong University.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of other interests or short positions of any other
person (other than the Directors and chief executives and
the substantial shareholders of the Company) in the
Shares or underlying Shares of the Company as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO as at 31 December 2008.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted on 25 November 2003
whereby the Directors of the Company may at their
discretion invite any employees, directors, suppliers,
customers, advisers, consultants, joint venture partners,
and any shareholders of any members of the Group or
any invested entities or any holders of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any invested
entities, to take up options to subscribe for Shares. The
Scheme became effective upon the listing of the
Company’s shares on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
on 9 January 2004.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company had granted the
options at the exercise price of HK$0.45 per share and
HK$0.14 per share on 17 January 2005 and 10 October
2005 respectively, all the options granted have lapsed in
the past years. As at 31 December 2008, the Company
had no outstanding options.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of
its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, in
which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year under review.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association, or law of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

LOAN FROM A SHAREHOLDER AND
A FORMER SHAREHOLDER

Particulars of loan from a shareholder and a former
shareholder of the Group as at 31 December 2008 are
set out in Note 27(d) to the financial statements.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities

of the Group for the last five years is set out on page
128 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes of the Group are
set out in Note 24 to the financial statements.

82 Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors and management and shareholders
of the Company (within the meaning of the GEM Listing
Rules) has an interest in any business which competes or
may compete with the business in which the Group is
engaged.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company is committed to establish a good corporate
governance practices and procedures. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasis a quality
board, sound internal control, transparency and
accountability to all shareholders. Save as disclosed on
the Corporate Governance Report, the Company has
complied with the Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2008. Details of the Code adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on the page 10 to 19.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established audit committee with
written terms of reference. The primary duties of the audit
committee are to review, in draft form, the Company’s
annual report and accounts, half-year report, quarterly
reports and to provide advice and comments thereon to
the Board. The audit committee is also responsible for
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process
and internal control of the Group. The audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Jin Guangjun, Mr. Law Kin Ho and Mr. Chan
Wai Fat. Mr. Jin Guangjun is the chairman of the audit
committee.

The audit committee has reviewed the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Company and
discussed with the Board the internal controls and
financial reporting matters, including a review of the
annual report for the year ended 31 December 2008.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors a written confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Based on such confirmation, the Board considers
all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2008.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the Company has complied
with the public float requirement under Rule 11.23 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Details of connected transactions are set out in Note 27
to the financial statements.

AUDITOR

CCIF CPA Limited (“CCIF”) was auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and held office
until 26 November 2008. Shu Lun Pan Horwath Hong
Kong CPA Limited (“HORWATH”") was appointed as
auditor of the Company by the Board to fill the casual
vacancy arising from the resignation of CCIF with effect
from 3 December 2008.

The financial statements have been audited by
HORWATH, who will retire and be eligible to offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting to
appoint auditor and to fix their remuneration.

84 Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENT

Details of the significant post balance sheet event are set
out in Note 32 to the financial statements.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yu Ping
Chairman

11 March 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S goouoougd
REPORT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE ooooooon

SHAREHOLDERS OF AURUM PACIFIC (CHINA) oooooobobooooooog
GROUP LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS S & D INTERNATIONAL gooooooobobooooooo
DEVELOPMENT GROUP LIMITED) ooooooboOoboobooogoo

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Aurum 00000000 Ooooomo ooao
Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) and its 00000000 oD@moooOoooao
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) set out on pages 42 000000000 0MmOOgo420 0
to 127, which comprise the consolidated and company 01270 0000000000000
balance sheets as at 31 December 2008, the 0o0DoDo0o0oDOo0oooooooog
consolidated income statement, consolidated statement of Oo0oooobooooooooooaon
changes in equity and consolidated cash flow statement odooooooooooooooan
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 0o00oD0o0doooooooooood
accounting policies and other explanatory notes. oo

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE Ood0oooooooooao

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation and the 0dddooooooooooooao
true and fair presentation of the financial statements in Jdddooooooooooooaon
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Oo0ooooooooooooooo
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified ooooooooooooooood
Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of Oo0o0D0ODo0o0o0oO0oooODoooooao
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility gooooououooooobboog
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal Oo0oooOoooooooooooan
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair Oo0o0o00O00ooooooooooaon
presentation of financial statements that are free from oooooooon

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in
the circumstances.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Except for the limitation in the scope of our work as
explained below, we conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. However,
because of the matters described in the basis for
disclaimer of opinion paragraph, we were not able to
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion.

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

1) Limitation of scope — Assets classified as
held for sale and liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held
for sale

As explained in Note 3(b)(i) to the financial
statements, due to the reconstitution of the Board
during 2007 and 2008, the Group is no longer able
to have access to certain books and records of the
Disposal Group (as defined in Note 9 to the financial
statements). Accordingly, we have been unable to
carry out audit procedures that we considered
necessary to obtain adequate assurance regarding
the completeness, accuracy, classification and
disclosures in respect of either the transactions
undertaken during the year ended 31 December
2008 and the related balances further detailed in
Notes 9 and 19 to the financial statements in
connection with the Disposal Group.
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2)

38

Any adjustment found to be necessary in respect of
the matters set out in the above would have a
consequential impact on the amounts “Assets
classified held for sale” and “Liabilities directly
associated with assets classified as held for sale” as
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet, the
Group’s and Company’s net liabilites as at 31
December 2008 and the Group’s loss for the year
then ended.

Limitation of scope — Minority interests
and exchange reserve

As explained in Note 3(b)(i) to the financial
statements, the underlying books and records of
certain subsidiaries were not accessible by the
Group, and due to the incompleteness of the books
and records of these subsidiaries being made
available to us, we were unable to carry out
adequate audit procedures to satisfy ourselves that
minority interests and exchange reserve relating to
these subsidiaries in the consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2008, the consolidated income
statement for the vyear then ended and notes
thereon were fairly stated.

Any adjustment found to be necessary in respect of
the matters set out in the above would have a
consequential impact on the minority interests and
exchange reserve as recorded in the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2008 and the
Group’s loss for the year then ended.

The prior year auditor qualified its opinion in respect
of the same limitation of scope in the auditor’s
report for the year ended 31 December 2007.
Therefore, the comparative figures may not be
comparable and any adjustments to the amounts
may have a consequential effect on the opening
balance of accumulated losses of the Group as at 1
January 2008, its loss for the year ended 31
December 2008 and related disclosures in the
financial statements.

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008
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3)

Limitation of scope — Carrying amount of
interests in subsidiaries and amounts due
from subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2008, included in the
Company’s balance sheet were interests in
subsidiaries of HK$1,000, stated net of an
impairment loss of HK$13,764,000, and amounts
due from subsidiaries of HK$15,674,000, stated net
of an impairment loss of HK$22,937,000. Due to
the scope limitations in respect of points (1) and (2)
above, we have not been able to satisfy ourselves
as to whether the impairment losses determined by
the Company’s directors against the carrying
amounts of such interests in subsidiaries and
amounts due from subsidiaries as at 31 December
2008, and in consequence the net carrying amounts
of the Company’s interests in subsidiaries and
amounts due from subsidiaries as at 31 December
2008 in the Company’s balance sheet and notes
thereon were fairly stated.

Any adjustment found to be necessary in respect of
the matters set out in the above would have a
consequential impact on the carrying amount of
interests in subsidiaries and amounts due from
subsidiaries as recorded in the Company’s balance
sheet, the Company’s net liabilities as at 31
December 2008 and the Company’s loss for the
year then ended.

The prior year auditor qualified its opinion in respect
of the same limitations of scope in the auditor’s
report for the year ended 31 December 2007.
Therefore, the comparative figures may not be
comparable and any adjustments to the amounts
may have a consequential effect on the opening
balance of accumulated losses of the Company at 1
January 2008 and its loss for the year ended 31
December 2008, its net liabilities as at 31 December
2008 and related disclosures in the financial
statements.
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4) Limitation of scope — Prior year audit
scope limitation affecting opening balances
and comparative figures

The opinion on the financial statements of the Group
and the Company for the year ended 31 December
2007 was disclaimed by the prior year auditor.
Details of the qualifications were fully explained in
the 2007 annual report.

Therefore, the comparative figures may not be
comparable and any adjustments to these figures
may have a consequential effect on the opening
balance of accumulated losses of the Group at 1
January 2008, its loss for the year ended 31
December 2008, the Group’s and Company’s net
liabilities as at 31 December 2008 and related
disclosures in the financial statements.

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION: DISCLAIMER ON
VIEW GIVEN BY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the significance of the limitations of scope
described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion paragraph,
we do not express an opinion on the financial statements
as to whether they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the Company as at 31
December 2008 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and as to whether the
financial statements have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

FUNDAMENTAL UNCERTAINTY RELATING
TO GOING CONCERN

As explained in Note 3(b)(i) to the financial statements,
the Group sustained a loss of HK$9,711,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2008. It had net current liabilities
and net liabilities of HK$6,995,000 and HK$14,864,000
respectively as at 31 December 2008. The financial
statements have been prepared by the directors on a
going concern basis, the validity of which depends on
the outcome of measures as detailed in Note 3(b)(ii).
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We consider that appropriate disclosures and estimates
have been made in the financial statements and our
opinion is not qualified in this respect.

SHU LUN PAN HORWATH 20th Floor, Central Plaza
HONG KONG CPA LIMITED 18 Harbour Road
Certified Public Accountants  Wanchai

Hong Kong

11 March 2009
Shiu Hong NG
Practising Certificate number P03752
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Oooon

For the year ended 31 December 2008
o0o00oOoOooooOboooooooao

2008 2007
goood oogoao
HK$’000 HK$’000
goo ooo
Notes (Restated)
oo ooooad
Continuing operations oooooo
Turnover 000 5 18,582 3,447
Cost of sales ooon (14,509) (2,668)
Gross profit 0o 4,073 779
Selling and distribution expenses ooooooo (835) (241)
Administrative expenses oonon (10,420) (4,997)
Loss from operations oooag (7,182) (4,459
Finance costs oooag 7 (366) —
Waiver of amount due to a former ooooooooono
shareholder — 1,595
Loss before taxation from continuing OO OO0OO0OOOCOOO
operations od 7 (7,548) (2,864)
Income tax ood 8 (147) -
Loss for the year from continuing oooooooooag
operations (7,695) (2,864)
Discontinued operations Oo0ooooo
Loss for the year from discontinued OO OO 0O OO
operations oooagd 9 (2,016) (2,523)
Loss for the year 0oo0oo (9,711) (5,387)
Attributable to: ooooood
Equity holders of the Company ooooooon 10 (9,711) (5,376)
Minority interests oo0ooooao - (11)
(9,711) (5,387)
Basis loss per share, in HK cents OodoodoOoooaoa 13
Continuing and discontinued oooDoDooooo
operations oad (4.86) (2.69)
Continuing operations ooooon (3.85) (1.43)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial

statements.

42

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008

gogdooggogooobbobobobobobobg



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
goooougn

At 31 December 2008
gooodoobooooooa

2008 2007
ooooo Oooood
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
oo ooo ooo
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ooooo
Non-current assets oooono
Property, plant and equipment Ooo0oo0ooooaon 14 117 327
Deposits for acquisition of oooooo
subsidiaries ooo 15 5,370 22,710
il 5487 . 23,087 |
Current assets oooad
Trade and other receivables ooooaod
ooooo 17 11,491 633
Cash and cash equivalents Ooooooooo 18 5,073 675
16,564 1,308
Assets classified as held for sale oooooood 19 12,888 —
29,452 1,308
Current liabilities oooad
Trade and other payables goooad
oooono 21 8,679 9,753
Amounts due to former directors ooooooag 27(b) - 14
Amount due to a shareholder oooooo 27(c) 97 —
Amount due to a former ooooonoaog
shareholder 27(c) 450 5,032
Bank loan, unsecured oooooon 20 — 14,980
Other loan payable, unsecured goooooooo - 495
Tax payable oood 147 —
(9,373) (30,274)
Liabilities directly associated with ooooooooa
assets classified as held for sale ooooooo 19 (27,074) —
(36,447) (80,274)
Net current liabilities | DDDO00 ... (699 (28960)
Total assets less current liabilities O 00 000000 (1,508) (5,929)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Ooooood

At 31 December 2008
pOoooooooooooao

2008 2007
ooooOoo oooOooao
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000
0o oog ooad
Non-current liabilities ooooo
Loan from a shareholder oooad 27(d) (12,210) —
Loan from a former shareholder oooaoa 27(d) (1,146) —
Net liabilities oooag (14,864) (5,929)
EQUITY oo
Share capital 00 22 2,000 2,000
Reserves od (18,340) (9,314)
Equity attributable to equity Oo0ooooon
holders of the Company ooogog (16,340) (7,314)
Minority interests oo0oooo 1,476 1,385
Total equity (deficiency) oooooooao (14,864) (5,929)

These financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 11 March 20089.

oo
Director

The accompanying notes form part of these financial

statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
oot

At 31 December 2008
gooodoobooooooa

2008 2007
0o0dododOo O0oood
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
oo ooad oodno
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES oo0ogno
Non-current assets ooo0oad
Interests in subsidiaries oooooooo 16 1 1
Current assets ooon
Trade and other receivables OO0o0O0oOOoooOooo 17 15,844 11,634
Current liabilities ooon
Trade and other payables oooooooooo 21 9,335 11,243
Amounts due to former directors OO0 O0O00O0O0O 27(b) — 14
Amount due to a shareholder oooooo 27(c) 97 —
Amount due to a former oooooon
shareholder 27(b) — 608
(9,432) (11,865)
Net current assets/(liabilities) 0 O000DODOOOOO 6412 (231)
Total assets less current 0o0oodoooon
liabilities 6,413 (230)
Non-current liabilities ooooo
Loan from a shareholder oooad 27(d) (12,210) —
Net liabilities Oooog (5,797) (230)
EQUITY 00
Share capital 00 22 2,000 2,000
Reserves oo 23 (7,797) (2,230)
Total equity (deficiency) oo0oooooa (5,797) (230)

These financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 11 March 2009.

oo
Director

The accompanying notes form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ooooougn

For the year ended 31 December 2008
o0o00oOoOooooOboooooooao

Share-based
compen- Accumul-

Share  Share Capital Capital General Exchange sation ated Minority
capital premium reserve surplus reserve  reserve reserve losses Sub total interests Total

oo 0o 00 00000 oooo
00 0000 00 000D oo oo oo0o 0Oo0o oo 0o 0o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo 000 000 DOO0 [©Ooo ooo oog goo  oodg oo0o 000

(note 23)  (note 23) (note 23)  (note 23) (note 23)

oooz20onn230nnn2sn ooo2sn  oooasi
Balance at oooooo
1 January 2007 gooooong 2,000 30,224 - 15,090 2,927 (550) 1,742 (51,905) (472) 1,305 833
Total expense recognised gooooooo
directly in equity: ooooo
Exchange differences arising on translation gooooooo
of overseas subsidiaries pgoooooo - - - - - (1,466) - - (1,466) 91 (1,379
Loss for the year oooo - - - - - - - (5,376)  (5,376) (1) (6,387
Total recognised (expenses)/ goooooo
income for the year goooooooo - - - - - (1,466) - (5,376) (6,842 80 (6,762
Lapse of share options ooooao - - - - - - (1,742) 1,742 - - -
Balance at 0o0oo0oooDooD
31 December 2007 ooo 2,000 30,224 - 15,090 2,927 (2,016) - (55539 (7,314) 1,385  (5,929)
Net income recognised gooooooo
directly in equity: goooo
Exchange differences arising on translation gooooooo
of overseas subsidiaries goooooao - - - - - (1,625) - - (1,629 91 (1,634)
Capital contribution by a shareholder in ooooooo
the form of interest-free loans ooo - - 2,310 - - - - - 2,310 - 2310
- - 2,310 - - (1,625) - - 685 91 776
Loss for the year oooo - - - - - - - 9711 9711 - @71
Total recognised (expenses)/income poooooo
for the year ooo0moooo - - 2,310 - - (1,625) - 9,711)  (9,026) 91 (8,939
Balance at 0o0o00DOooDooD
31 December 2008 ooo 2,000 30,224 2,310 15,090 2,927 (3,641) - (65250) (16,340) 1,476 (14,864)

The accompanying notes form part of these financial OO OO0OOO0OOO0DOOOOOODOOO
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Joooood

For the year ended 31 December 2008
ooodoooboooooooooa

2008 2007
ooooo goood
HK$’000 HK$’'000
oono ooo
(Restated)
oooood
Operating activities oooo
Loss before taxation: ooooogo
From continuing operations ooooono (7,548) (2,864)
From discontinued operations ooooooao (2,016) (2,523)
Adjustments for: ooo
Depreciation of property, plant and odoooooooa
equipment 97 55
Write-off of property, plant and oooboooooao
equipment 178 —
Finance costs ooagao 366 1,703
Allowance for impairment loss for trade gooooooooao
receivables - 57
Fair value adjustment on deposits for goooooo
acquisition of subsidiaries ooooooad 630 —
Waiver of amount due to a former ooooo
shareholder ooooag - (1,595)
Write-off of other receivables ooooooo = 702
Operating cash flows before working gooooooooao
capital changes oooo (8,293) (4,465)
Increase in trade and other receivables goooag
ooooooo (7,857) (609)
Decrease in deposits and prepayments gooooooao 1,000 —
Increase in trade and other payables oooooooooa
ood 8,979 695
Decrease in amounts due to former ooooooooao
directors (14) —
Increase in amount due to a shareholder gooooooao 97 —
Decrease in amount due to a former goooooooo
shareholder (3,282) —
Cash used in operations oooooo (9,370) (4,379)
Interest paid oooo (144) —
Net cash used in operating activities oooooooooo (9,514) (4,379)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Ooooood

For the year ended 31 December 2008
o0o00oOoOooooOboooooooao

2008 2007
ooooo goood
HK$’000 HK$’'000
oono ooo
(Restated)
oooood
Investing activities oono
Payments to acquire property, plant and ooooooon
equipment ooon (65) (382)
Net cash used in investing activities ooDooDOooooaog (65) (382)
Financing activities ooo
Repayment to former directors oooooo - (1,370)
Advance from a director ogooo - 4
Advance from a former shareholder ooooad - 1,595
Advance from a shareholder oooo - 5,032
Loan obtained from a shareholder oooooog 14,144 —
Net cash generated from financing oooboooooao
activities 14,144 5,261
Net increase in cash and cash oooobooooooo
equivalents 4,565 500
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 0odDoDOooOooooad
of year 675 164
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes oooooooo 11 11
Cash and cash equivalents atend of year O 0 0000000000 5,251 675
Analysis of the balances of cash and goooooooooo
cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand goooooooo 5,073 675
Cash at bank and in hand included in ooooooooooo
assets classified as held for sale goooooooao
(Note 19) ooo190d 178 —
5,251 675

The accompanying notes form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

1. ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS 1. 00000

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited (the “Company”) 00000000 o0oO0ooaon
(formerly known as “S & D International Development ooooooooooboboOooo
Group Limited”) was incorporated in the Cayman 00O oooDOooDoooaao
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability Ooooooooooooooan
and its shares are listed (currently suspended) on the 0000000 Oomo o oo
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock oo ooooooao
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock OMmooooooooooao
Exchange”). The Company’s registered office is located Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands, and its KY1-1111, Cayman Islands0 O O O
head office and principal place of business in Hong 0o0doooooooooooao
Kong is located at Room 3707, 37/F, West Tower, OO000000O1e8-2000 000
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, 000370370700

Hong Kong.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Oo0ooDoOoOoooDooooao
extraordinary general meeting held on 16 October ooooDoooooooooao
2008, the name of the Company has been changed 000 000 0O0O0OdOgs&b
from “S & D International Development Group Limited” International Development Group
to “Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited”. LmtedOODODODOODOOOOO

0O 0 00 O 0d0d Aurum Pacific (China)
GroupLimtedO O OO DO DOOOO

0

The principal activities of the Group during the year are 0o0ooDoooooOooooao
the provision of custom-made solutions and trading of ooooooooooooooo
computer equipment, computerised smart sockets and Oooodoooooooo
accessories.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. 0J0O0oo0oOooooOooao
STANDARDS
In the current year, the Group has adopted all of the ogoooooooooooooo
new and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting ooobooooooooodao
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all Oooooomooooooao
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting opnoooooooooooo
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) moooooooOooooo
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute goooooooboooogo
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are oooomooo0oo0mgo
relevant to its operations and effective for the current oooocooooooooooo
accounting period of the Group and the Company. The poooooooooooooo
adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs did not ooooOoooooobooao
result in substantial changes to the Group’s accounting poooobbodgooooo
policies. Ooooooooon
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ooogod

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

2.

50

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. 000O0OO0OO0ODODOOOOOO
STANDARDS (Continued)

The adoption of HK(FRIC) — Int 11 “HKFRS 2 — ooooooooooobodaod
Group and treasury share transactions”, HK(IFRIC) — oo0—0oomgooooooo
Int 12 “Service concession arrangements”, HK(IFRIC) — oob20 —0oooooooao
Int 14 “HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined benefit omooooooboooooao
asset, minimum funding requirements and their oboo—0ooo1z200o0o00oaon
interaction” and HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Amendments oomooobocoboooooao
“Reclassification of financial assets” has no impact on poobd—0ooopoooon
these financial statements. oboOo1o0 —0ooooood

ooobooooooobbooon
ooooooogo3uooogo
googobrvoobbogobooon
ooooooboboooooboooo

00

At the date of authorisation of these financial gooodoodoodoood
statements, the following HKFRSs were in issue but not ooobooooooooodano
yet effective: ooooo

Effective

date

gooo
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial statements (i)
gooooooilgoooon goooooao
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs 0]
doooooo2s000000 oooo
HKAS 32 & HKAS 1 (Amendments) Puttable financial instruments and (i)

obligations arising on liquidation
oo0boO0oboos20 001000l ObOoobobooboooooo

HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 (Amendments) Cost of an investment in a subsidiary, 0]
jointly controlled entity or associate
ooooooooo1o0o oo0ooooooooooaoo
oooooooz2roooooo ooooooooo
HKFRS 8 Operating segments (i)
oooooooooasd ogood
HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the construction of real 0]
estates
goodooooooouond— goooooao
000150
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

googog

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

STANDARDS (Continued)

ooooobobobobdgdad

Effective
date
ooon

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
oooooobooozooooon

HKAS 27 (Revised)
doooooo2roo0oo0oOn

HKFRS 3 (Revised)
O0o00ooooo3oooon

HK(FRIC) — Int 13
0000000000000 0O0O—
000130

HK(FRIC) — Int 16

gooboooboobobooobio—
0oooDited

HK(IFRIC) — Int 17
0000000000000 0 O—
000170

HK(FRIC) — Int 18
0000000000000 00O—
000180

2008 Improvements to HKFRSs that
result in accounting changes for
presentation, recognition or
measurement

may

gddooooooooobobobooo
gbooboobooobooboooo

goo

Vesting conditions and cancellation
opoooooao

Consolidated and separate financial
statements
ooooooooo

Business combinations
goog

Customer loyalty programmes
oooooad

Hedges of a net investment in a foreign
operation
oooooogooo

Distributions of non-cash assets to owners
Oo0oooOooooooao

Transfers of assets from customers
oooooono

— HKAS 1, HKAS 16, HKAS 19, HKAS
20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28,
HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 36, HKAS
38, HKAS 39, HKAS 40 & HKAS 41

— HKFRS 5

—0oboobooo1boobgooobo
000 oooooOoi1unoooong
gboboz2000000000023000
googbobzroboooooon
2800000000020 000000
oo0o3iooboobobooosebond
oobogooossuooooooon
oubooooooo40b0000
ogooog410

—0o0o0oo0obOoobosd

ooooooooono ooooooo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ooogod

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

2.

52

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
STANDARDS (Continued)

Effective date

(0

(i)

)

)

Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

Annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

Annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

Annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these new HKFRSs is expected
to be in the period of their initial application.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Growth Enterprise
Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

Basis of preparation of financial
statements

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified
for certain financial instruments which are stated
at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

googog

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

goooooo

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of financial
statements (Continued)

(0

State of books and records maintained by
certain subsidiaries

The financial statements have been prepared
based on the books and records maintained
by the Company and its subsidiaries.
However, after the reconstitution of the Board
during the years ended 31 December 2007
and 2008 the Group no longer has access
to certain of prior years’ books and records
of SJTU Sunway Information Technology Co.
Ltd., SUNV (Beijing) Century Information
Technology Co., Ltd., Beijing Guoxin Sunway
IT Co, Ltd., Shanghai Sunway Century IT
Co., Ltd. and Fujian Multi Language
Translation Service Co., Ltd., the subsidiaries
of the Company and Beijing Advanced
Information Storage Technology Co., Ltd., an
associate of the Company. The present
Board tried to obtain assistance from the

former directors to locate the relevant
information and documents. However, the
present Board lost contact with the

responsible former directors and were
therefore unable to have access to the
relevant information and documents within
the time constraint in the preparation of
these financial statements. Hence, only
limited books and records of these
subsidiaries are accessible by the present
Board. In view of the foregoing, no
representations as to the completeness of
the books and records could be given by the
present Board although care has been taken
in the preparation of the financial statements
to mitigate the effect of the incomplete
records. The directors have in the
assessment of the Group’s assets and
liabilities taken such steps as they considered
practicable to establish these assets and
liabilities based on the information of which
they were aware and have made provisions
and adjustments as they considered
appropriate in the preparation of these
financial statements.

3.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ooogod

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

54

(b) Basis of preparation of financial
statements (Continued)

U

(i)

State of books and records maintained by
certain subsidiaries (Continued)

On this basis, the directors believe that no
significant liability has been omitted from
these financial statements.

Going concern

In preparing these financial statements, the
directors of the Company have considered
the future liquidity of the Group in view of its
net liabilities as at 31 December 2008.
During the year, a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company defaulted on the repayment
of bank loan. The said subsidiary was
subsequently disposed after year end. Details
are set out in Note 9.

In order to strengthen the capital base of the
Group and to improve the Group’s financial
position, immediate liquidity and cash flows,
and otherwise to sustain the Group as a
going concern, the directors of the Company
have adopted the following measures:

()  The Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with a third party
to sell the Disposal Group (as defined
in Note 9) on 2 March 2009;

(i)  The directors of the Company are
considering various alternatives to
strengthen the capital base of the
Company through various fund raising
exercises, including but not limited to, a
private placement, an open offer or a
rights issue of new shares of the
Company;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

goooooo

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of financial
statements (Continued)

(i)

Going concern (Continued)

(i)  The directors of the Company continue
to take action to tighten cost controls
over various operating expenses, and
are actively seeking new investment and
business opportunities with an aim to
attain profitable and positive cash flow
operations; and

(iv)  The controlling shareholder continues to
provide financial support to the Group.

In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, in light of the measures taken to
date, together with expected results of other
measures in progress and the continual
financial support extended by the controlling
shareholder, the Group will have sufficient
working capital for its current requirements
and it is reasonable to expect the Group to
return to a commercially viable going
concern. Accordingly, notwithstanding that
the Group incurred a consolidated net loss
of HK$9,711,000 for the year ended 31
December 2008 and had consolidated net
current liabilities of HK$6,995,000 and
consolidated net liabilities of HK$14,864,000
as at 31 December 2008, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that it is
appropriate to prepare these financial
statements for the year ended 31 December
2008 on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ooogod

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of financial
statements (Continued)

(i) Going concern (Continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue to
operate as a going concern, adjustments
would have to be made to restate the values
of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might
arise and to reclassify non-current assets as
current assets. The effects of these potential
adjustments have not been reflected in the
financial statements.

(c) Basis of consolidation

The financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The results of subsidiaries acquired and disposed
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal,
as appropriate.

All significant intercompany transactions, balances
and unrealised gains on transactions between
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. JdDoDOOoOoonO
(Continued)

(c) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (c) ODODDOODODO
Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated oooooooooooa
subsidiaries are identified separately from the OoooOooooboooooag
Group’s equity therein. Minority interests consist of oooooooooooa
the amount of those interests at the date of the oooooooooooa
original business combination and the minority’s oooooooooooao
share of changes in equity since the date of the Oo0do0ooooooooano
combination. Losses applicable to the minority in oooooooooooa
excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s ooDooDoooooooao
equity are allocated against the interests of the Oodoooooooooano
Group except to the extent that the minority has oooooooooooa
a binding obligation and is able to make an oooooooooooao
additional investment to cover the losses. oooooooooooa

ooo

(d) Subsidiaries d O0O0OO
Subsidiaries are entities in which the Group has Ooooooooogooo
the power to govern the financial and operating Oo00o00oDooooooOoa
policies, so as to obtain benefits from their O00D0DO0oO0ooooooao
activities. In assessing control, potential voting oooDooooooooao
rights that presently are exercisable are taken into OoOoooo
account.
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Oo0oDooooooooao
Company’s balance sheet at cost less any Oooooooooooao
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are Oo0o0o0oDoooooooao
accounted for by the Company on the basis of Oo0o0ooooooooao
dividends received and receivable. ooooo
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

58

(Continued)

(e) Non-current assets (and disposal groups)

classified as held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are
classified as held for sale if their carrying amount
will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through continuing use.
This conclusion is regarded as met only when the
sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal
groups) is available for immediate sale in its
present condition. Management must be
committed to the sale, which should be expected
to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified
as held for sale are measured at the lower of their
previous carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost
or valuation of assets, over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at each balance sheet date,
with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Leasehold improvements

goboobog

Computer and other equipment
ooooooo

Furniture and fixtures
oooaoa

Motor vehicles
00

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

60

(9)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate: that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008

3.

ooooboodgad

(99 DO0OOooono

Oo0ooooooooooooooo

Ooo0oOoooooao

Oooooooooo

O

gboooooooooao
oooobooooboo
gbobooooooogno
gooooboooonboao
ooooboooonboo
gooboboooooboao
ooooobobbbmoboo
oboooooooono
goooooooooan
gboooooooooao
ooooobooooonboo
goobooboooooDoao
gboooooooooao
oooobooooonboo
gbobooooooogno
gooobooooo

gboooooooooao
oboooooooono
goooogobobogo
gboooooooooao
obobooooooao
goooboboooon
gooobobbooon
oooboooooano
U

ad
g
g
O

ooooobbooooo
gooogoooooobo
gooboooooogoo
oooobboooon
goboooooooao
gooboooooao
oooboooooano
gboooooooo

OO0Oo0ooOoooadd



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-
generating wunit) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation increase.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on trade date where the purchase or sale of a
financial asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the investment within the
timeframe established by the market concerned,
are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction
costs, except for those financial assets classified
as at fair value through profit or loss, which are
initially measured at fair value. These financial
assets are subsequently accounted for as follows:

() Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables
that have fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market are
classified as loans and receivables. Loans
and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
any impairment. Interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate, except
for short-term receivables when the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

62

(h) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at fair
value through profit or loss, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that as a
result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
investment have been impacted.

Objective evidence of impairment could
include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or counterparty; or

— default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation; or

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

goooooo

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as the
difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate, where

ooooooooono ooooooo
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

64

(h) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included in trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors directly
and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial asset, or where appropriate,
a shorter period.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset
only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire; or it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset
to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset
and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities and equity instrument
issued by the Group

(1)

(i)

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of
an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

66

(i)

Financial liabilities and equity instrument
issued by the Group (Continued)

(ii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either
financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss or other financial liabilities. All the
financial liabilities of the Group are
catergorised as other financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings,
are initially measured at fair value, net of
transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with interest
expense recognised on an effective vyield
basis.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognises financial liabilities

when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooo

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

)

(k)

()

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and deposits held at call with banks, and
other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to a known amount of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term, except where another systematic basis is
more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in
the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from
the leased asset are consumed.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

68

(m) Provisions

(n)

A provision is recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits
required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of
the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past
events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will
be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooo

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. JdDoDOoOooanO
(Continued)

(n) Contingent liabilities (Continued) (n) OODOOODOO
A contingent liability is not recognised but is oooooooooooa
disclosed in the financial statements. When a ooooDoooooooao
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so obobooooooooo
that the outflow is probable, it will then be Ooooooooooooa
recognised as a provision. oooooDoo

(o) Taxation (o) OO
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax oooooooooooa
currently payable and deferred tax. oooooooon
() Current tax @ oooo

goooooao

The tax currently payable is based on taxable 0
oooooogad
O
O

profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in the income statement
because it excludes items of income or
expenses that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

70

(o) Taxation (Continued)

(i)

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability
method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

goooooo

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Taxation (Continued)

(i)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance
sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the
balance sheet date, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority
and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(2

(Continued)

(p) Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group
entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”). For the purpose of the
consolidated financial statements, the results and
financial position of each Group entity are
expressed in Hong Kong dollar which is the
functional currency of the Company, and the
presentation currency for the consolidated financial
statements.

ltems included in the financial statements of the
Company are measured using the Hong Kong
dollar, the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates (the
“functional currency”). The financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars.

In preparing the financial statements of the
individual entities, transactions in currencies other
than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each
balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ooodgao
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
ooooooo
3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. Joooooooao
(Continued)
(p) Foreign currencies (Continued) (p) DOOOO
Exchange differences are recognised in profit or ooboboooboboooobdga
loss in the period in which they arise except for ooobooooooobao
exchange differences on monetary items receivable oooooooooooad
from or payable to a foreign operation for which oogoobbobbooogd
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur, ooodooooooobog
which form part of the net investment in a foreign gooboooobooood
operation, and which are recognised in the oooobboobooood
exchange reserve within equity and recognised in Ooo0oDDbOoooooooao
profit or loss on disposal of the net investment. dddodooooooooon

For the purpose of presenting consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of
the Group’s foreign operations are expressed in
Hong Kong dollar using exchange rates prevailing
at the balance sheet date. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuated significantly during the period, in which
case the exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are classified as equity and
transferred to the Group’s exchange reserve. Such
translation differences are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

74

(q) Employees’ benefits

(i)

(i)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Shared-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
share-based compensation reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant
date using the binomial model, taking into
account ithe terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the
employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q) Employees’ benefits (Continued)

()

(i)

Shared-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based compensation reserve. On
vesting date, the amount recognised as an
expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to accumulated losses).

Related parties

For the purposes of the financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to
control the Group or exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial
and operating policy decisions, or has joint
control over the Group;
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

/6

(r)

Related parties (Continued)

(vi)

the Group and the party are subject to
common control;

the party is an associate of the Group;

the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent, or a close family member of such an
individual, or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in () or is an entity under the
control, joint control or significant influence of
such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
which is for the benefit of employees of the
Group or of any entity that is a related party
of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those
family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that individual in
their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

goooooo

3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is
reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates
and other similar allowances and exclude value
added tax or other sales related taxes.

(i)

(i)

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of products is
recognised when the Group entity has
delivered products to the customer, the
customer has accepted the products and
collectability of the related receivable is
reasonably assured.

Custom-made solutions

When the outcome of a custom-made
solution contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue from a fixed price contract is
recognised using the percentage of
completion method, measured by reference
to the percentage of contract costs incurred
to date to estimated total contract costs for
the contract.

When the outcome of a custom-made
solution contract cannot be estimated reliably,
revenue is recognised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred that it is probable will
be recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
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3. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

/8

(t)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products
or services (business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment (geographical segment), which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different
from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment information as
the secondary reporting format for the purposes
of the financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated
on a reasonable basis to that segment. For
example, segment assets may include inventories,
trade receivables and property, plant and
equipment. Segment revenue, expenses, assets,
and liabilities rare determined before intra-group
balances and intra-group transactions are
eliminated as part of the consolidation process,
except to the extent that such intra-group
balances and transactions are between group
entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those
available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are
expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans,
borrowings, tax balances, corporate and financing
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooo

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors are required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(@) Impairments

In considering the impairment losses that may be
required for certain of the Group’s assets which
include property, plant and equipment, other
assets and investments in subsidiaries, recoverable
amount of the asset needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling prices and the value in use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate selling prices because quoted
market prices for these assets may not be readily
available. In determining the value in use,
expected cash flows generated by the assets are
discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as the
level of sale volume, selling price and amount of
operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount
that is reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on a
reasonable and supportable assumptions and
projections of items such as sale volume, selling
price and amount of operating costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ooogod

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4. DO0O0DO0DO0DO0DO0ODOOOOO0
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION OO00O0O00ooOoOoao
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty O0o000oO00b0O0o0ooooon
(Continued)

(@) Impairments (Continued) (@ 00000
Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are oooooooooooa
assessed and provided based on the directors’ OoooooooOooooag
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of oooooooooooada
collectability. A considerable level of judgement is 00000 Ooooooaoano
exercised by the directors when assessing the 0oDooDoooooooao
credit worthiness and past collection history of Oooooooooooano
each individual customer. Any increase or oodoooooooooa
decrease in the allowance for impairment of OoooooooOooooag
doubtful debts would affect profit or loss in future oooo
years.

(b)  Depreciation b)) OO0
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on OooDoODoooooooao
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful oooooooooooada
lives, after taking into account the estimated oooooooooooa
residual value. The Group reviews annually the oooooooOooooag
useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any. Oo0do0ooooooooano
The depreciation expense for future periods is O0o0omoooooooaa
adjusted if there are significant changes from oooDOoooooooao
previous estimates. O0o00ooOooon
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

5.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the revenue from provision of
custom-made solutions, and the sales value of goods
sold after allowances for goods returned. The amount
of each significant category of revenue recognised in
turnover during the year is as follows:

5. 0o

obobobobobobooo
godooooooooooooboo
gbomooboobobonn
ooooboboobooog

2008 2007
00000 0DDo0oOo
HK$°000 HK$’'000

ooad ooad

Trading of computer equipment and Ooooooooo
accessories 16,437 2,247
Provision of custom-made solutions Ooooooooo 2,145 1,200
18,582 3,447

SEGMENT REPORTING

Business segmental information of the group for the
years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007 is shown as
below.

Primary reporting format — Business
segments

The Group comprises the following main business
segments:

Continuing operations

() Custom-made solutions
To develop and implement custom-made solutions
which are specifically designed and developed for
the specific needs and requirements of a particular
customer.

(i) Computer equipment and accessories
Trading of computer hardware and software, and

computerised smart sockets and related
accessories.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
ooooooo
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. UUOOOOODO
Primary reporting format — Business ooddooo —ooooooa
segments (Continued)
Discontinued operations oooooog
() Information localisation services @ ooooood
To provide translation and information localisation poooooouoooog
services.
For the year ended 31 December 2008 oooooooooooooo
oo
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
goo
oooooo gooo
Trading of
computer
Provision of equipment Information
custom-made and localisation
solutions accessories services Consolidated
ooooon ooon oad
oad ooooo goooao oad
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
oon oon goa ogoa
Revenue from external customers 000000000 2,145 16,437 - 18,582
Segment results WimEEEE (1,057) 1,794 (12) 725
Unallocated operating income dooooooa
and expenses oad (7,919)
Loss from operations o000 (7,194)
Finance costs 00o0Q (2,370)
Loss before taxation ooo0oQ (9,564)
Income tax o000 (147)
Loss for the year oooo (9,711)
Capital expenditure oooo - - -
Depreciation of property, plant oOooooooa
and equipment og - - -

Fair value adjustment on deposits 00000000
for acquisition of subsidiaries ooooon - - -

82 Aurum Pacific (China) Group Limited Annual Report 2008



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

O00000
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
0000000
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. UUOOOOODO
Primary reporting format — Business 000000 —0000o0a0n

segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2008 (Continued) ooooooooooboogoao
Oo0gooono

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations

oono

oooooa ooono

Trading of
computer

Provision of equipment Information

custom-made and localisation
solutions accessories services Consolidated

oooooa ooon oo
0o oooon oooon oo
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ooo goao oono oono

At 31 December 2008 oooooao
0oopoooa

Segment assets ooono 189 9,233 - 9,422
Unallocated assets ooooao 25,517
Consolidated total assets goooooao 34,939
Segment liabilities ogono - 7,359 1,186 8,545
Unallocated liabilities gooooao 41,258
Consolidated total liabilities goooooao 49,803
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gooogoo
ggobooboo —0booogd

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6.

Primary reporting format — Business
segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 oooooooooooooo

ood
Discontinued
Continuing operations operations
ooo
gooooo oooo
Trading of
computer
Provision of equipment Information
custom-made and localisation
solutions accessories services  Consolidated
gooooao ooon oad
oad goooo ooooo aad
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooa oon oon ooo
Revenue from external oooooooon
customers 1,200 2,247 — 3,447
Segment results gooad (1,409) (259 (428) (2,096)
Unallocated operating 0000000000
income and expenses (3,183)
Loss from operations o000 (5,279)
Finance costs 0000 (1,703)
Waiver of amount duetoa O00O0O0OO0O0OO00ODO
former shareholder 1,595
Loss before taxation ooooao (5,387)
Income tax ooa -
Loss for the year 0000 (65,387)
Capital expenditure oooao — - -
Depreciation of property, 0000000000
plant and equipment — - -
Allowance for impairment 000o00o0ooon
loss for trade receivables — - 57
Write-off of other receivables 0000000 — — 702
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googog

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooo

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Primary reporting format — Business

segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2007 (Continued)

6. UOODooodgd

ugboobodo —0oboooggd

gbooboobobobobonb

oooogo

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations

ooo

ooooon oooad

Trading of
computer

Provision of equipment Information

custom-made and localisation
solutions accessories services  Consolidated

goooon oood 00
o0 ooooo oooon 00
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
agod oo oo oo

At 31 December 2007 0o0oo0oooooao
oood

Segment assets oooao 313 38 — 351
Unallocated assets ooooao 23,994
Consolidated total assets gooooo 24,345
Segment liabilities oooao 1,722 298 1,113 3,133
Unallocated liabilities ooooo 27,141
Consolidated total liabilites 000000 30,274
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ooooooo

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. UOOOOODO
Secondary reporting format — Geographical 000000 —00oa0ga
segments
In presenting information on the basis of geographical gooouoouooooooo
segments, segment revenue is based on the gooodooooooooon
geographical location of customers, whereas segment gooooooodoobooddo
assets and capital expenditure are based on the gooooo

geographical location of the assets.

The following is the analysis of the Group’s turnover by ooobooooooooodano
geographical market based on geographical location of gooooooooooooaon
customers. oo
The PRC Hong Kong Other Asian Countries Consolidated
oo 0o oooooo oo
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

oooob ooooOO0 oobobO OoOobOo0 ODooOo0O ooOobODbO bobooOo ooooao
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000
ooo ooao ooa ooo ooo ooo ooo ooao

Revenue from external oobOobooo

customers oo 2,145 250 15,548 950 889 2,247 18,582 3,447

The PRC Hong Kong Other Asian Countries Consolidated

oo oo oooooo oo

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ooooo0 OoboO00 ODOODOO CObOOO0 0OOCoO0b0 Obo0Ob0 boODO ooboo
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKE000 HK$000  HK$'000
oono oono ooo ooo ooo ooo oon oono
Segment assets goooo 385 380 34,554 23,965 - — 34,939 24,345
Capital expenditure oooo - - 65 382 - - 65 382
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7.

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Loss before taxation from continuing operations is

arrived at after charging:

(@) Finance costs:

7. DODOOOOOOODOOD

gboboobobobobonb
gooooboo

(@ DoOO0O0

2008 2007
oo0oo0o0 ooooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
ooo ooo
(Restated)
ooooad
Interest expense on financial liabilites OO ODO0O0OO0O00O0OO
not at fair value through profit or ooodoooooo
loss
— Interest on other loan wholly —O00o0o00ooooad
repayable within five years oooooooo 144 —
— Imputed interest on interest-free —0ooooooo
loans from a shareholder 0o0oo 222 -
366 —

(b) Staff costs (including directors’

() OOODOOODDOOOOO

remuneration (Note 11)): OO0 o1Moo
2008 2007
oooono Oooooad
HK$’000 HK$’000
oood ooao
Salaries, wages and allowances oooooooo 3,577 2,091

Contributions to retirement benefits Oooooooog

schemes (Note 24) 0oonoz40 94 58
3,671 2,149

ooooooooono ooooooo
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Odooodan
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
ooooooo
7. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION FROM 7. 0000 OoOooboOoooOoao
CONTINUING OPERATIONS (Continued) 000
(c) Other items (c) DOOO
2008 2007
0oooo0oo0 ooooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
ood Oooo
Auditor’s remuneration ooooao 480 438
Depreciation of property, plant and oooooooooa
equipment (Note 14) 0oooi40o 97 55
Allowance for impairment loss for ooooooooad
trade receivables (Note 17) ooooot7zd - 57
Fair value adjustment on deposits for OO 0000 O0OO
acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 15) O000000oisod 630 —
Write-off of other receivables ooooood - 702
Net foreign exchange loss oooooao - 1
Write-off of property, plant and Ooo0oOoOoooooa
equipment 178 —
8. INCOME TAX 8. 0UonO
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement @@ ODOODOOoOOoOooooo
represents provision for Hong Kong profits tax oooboooooobo
calculated at 16.5% on the estimated assessable oboooooooooo
profits for the year. No provision for Hong Kong 0165%0 0 0000000
profits tax has been made for 2007 as the Group oooooooooooao
did not earn profits subject to Hong Kong profits oooooooooooada
tax for the year ended 31 December 2007. oooooboboobobog
gooobooboboooad
0Oo0o0ooDooo
For the years ended 31 December 2008 and oooDooooooooad
2007, no provision for PRC income tax has been gooooooooooo
made as the Group did not have assessable profit oobooobooood
subject to the income tax rules and regulations in ooooDooboooooao
the PRC. ooooDoooooooao
ooooo
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
ooooooo
8. INCOME TAX (Continued) 8. Uoooond
(b) Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the oy ODODODOOODODOOODOO
accounting loss as follows: oodn
2008 2007
ogoodo ooooao
HK$’000 HK$’000
ooao ooo
Loss before taxation oooon (9,564) (5,387)
Taxation calculated at the rates oooooooooag
applicable to losses in the jurisdicion O OO0OO0OO00O00O0OO
concerned 0o (1,548) (952)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible OO OODOOOOO
for taxation purposes 00 632 636
Tax effect on unused tax losses not ooooooooonoag
recognised ooooooo 1,063 316
Income tax for the year oooon 147 —
Refer to Note 26 for deferred taxation not oooooooooooo
recognised. 00002en
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
ooooooo
9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM 9. oo ooobooooao
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
On 2 March 2009, the Company entered into an oooDo0ooooodooooo
agreement to dispose of its entire equity interest of Oo0oooODoODo0oO0ooOooooao
Besto Investment Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary Besto Investment Limitedd O O O
and its subsidiaries and associate (collectively the O0o0oDOO0O0oO0oooobooooao
“Disposal Group”). The Disposal Group engaged in the OO0 ooDooooooooOo0oaon
business of providing information localisation services. ooooooooooooooo
In accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting OoooDoooooooooao
Standard 5 “Non Current Assets Held For Sale and Ooos000000ooDOooan
Discontinued Operations”) (“HKFRS 5”) issued by the 00000 DoDOooDomooaoan
HKICPA, the business segment of information OoooDoOos0Oonooooonoao
localisation services was required to be presented as Oo0oDoDooo0oooODooooan
discontinued operations and the related assets and dodoooooooooooo
liabilities are classified as held for sale and liabilities OoooDoooooooooao
directly associated with assets classified as held for Ooo0oooooooon
sale, respectively.
The loss for the year from discontinued operations is Oo0oDoDooo0oooODooooan
analysed as follows: oo
2008 2007
oooono ooooad
HK$’000 HK$’000
oo oo
Revenue 00 — —
Administrative expenses (Note) oo0oooood (12) (820)
Finance costs ooono (2,004) (1,703)
Loss before taxation and for the year 0o0oooooon (2,016) (2,523)

90

Note: No allowance for impairment loss for trade and other
receivables is included for the year ended 31 December 2008
(2007: HK$760,000).
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Odoodo
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
Ooooooo
9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM 9. J0Oooooobooooao
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) O0ad
The cash flows attributable to the discontinued OoooDoooooooooao
operations are as follows: ooog
2008 2007
oooodo ooooao
HK$°000 HK$’000
Oon Oon
Cash inflows/(outflows) from: ooooooooon
agooom
Operating activities oooog (6) (2)
Investing activities oooad - T
Financing activities ooono - —
Net cash outflow oooooao (6) 2
10. LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 10. 0000000000030
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company oooooooooooodn
includes a loss of HK$7,711,000 (2007: loss of oo v711o000 00000000
HK$861,000) which has been dealt with in the financial gel.oo00 Do oooooonod
statements of the Company. poooooood
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O00000

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

ooooooo

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 1. DO OO0
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to the GEM Oo0ooDooo0oooODooooan
Listing Rules and section 161 of the Hong Kong odOdt1ei00000ooooooo

Companies Ordinance is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2008 OoooDoooooooooao
ooo

Salaries,
allowance Contributions
and to retirement

Directors’ benefits in benefits
fee kind schemes Total
ood
oo oooo
oooo oooo oooad oo
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ooao ooao ooo ooo
Executive Directors oood
Cheung Yu Ping (note 4) Oooogo40 - 414 6 420
Chan Chi Chiu Henry ooo
(note 4) oomoan - 354 6 360
Lee Ah Sang (note 6) 00000060 - 188 3 191
Henry Dicker Yee oo0
(notes 2 & 5) 0ooozosi - 642 7 649
Tan Shu Jiang (note 5) 00000060 - 5 - 5
Tinna Chan Yee (notes 1 & 5) O 0O0000O10560 - - - -
Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed
(notes 1 & 5) oooiosg - - - -
Independent Non-Executive 0000000
Directors
Jin Guangjun (note 4) 00000040 56 - - 56
Law Kin Ho (note 4) 00000040 56 - - 56
Chan Wai Fat (note 4) 00000040 56 - - 56
Chan Cheong Yee ooao
(notes 3 & 5) 0008060 32 - - 32
Ronald Gary Hopp Ronald Gary Hopp
(notes 3 & 5) on0nososa 2 - - 2
Yip Tai Him (notes 3 & 5) 0000008060 32 - - 32
234 1,603 22 1,859
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goooooo

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 11. OO0 00O O

For the year ended 31 December 2007 00000 DOoDOoDoDOooOoaon
ood
Salaries,  Contributions
allowance  to retirement
Directors’ and benefits benefits
fee in kind schemes Total
god
ooao oooo
ooon ooon oooo oo
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ooo ooo ooao oono
Executive Directors oooo
Henry Dicker Yee Ooodn
(notes 2 & 5) oooazosn — 516 5 521
Tan Shu Jiang (note 5) O0000ooosd — 12 — 12
Tinna Chan Yee (notes 1 & 5) 000000010560 — - = -
Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed Sana Bakhtiar Ahmed
(notes 1 & 5) oooitosno - - — -
Sze Wai, Marco (note 7) O0oooord - = — —
Shang Guan Bu Yan (nhote 7) 0O 00O 0O0O0OO70 - = - -
Chen Si Gen (nhote 7) 0oo0oooorg = oy — —
Independent Non-Executive O OO 00 00O
Directors
Chan Cheong Yee ood
(notes 3 & 5) 0ooososs 46 — — 46
Ronald Gary Hopp Ronald Gary Hopp
(notes 3 & 5) 0ooososd 3 — — 3
Yip Tai Him (notes 3 & 5) 00000030560 46 — - 46
Wang Tian Ye (note 8) 000ooosd - - — —
Wang Bin (note 8) Oooooso . - - -
Xu Shi Hong (note 8) 000ooosd - - — —
95 528 5 628

ooooooooono ooooooo
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11.

94

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

Notes:

1. Appointed on 1 February 2007
2. Appointed on 8 August 2007

3. Appointed on 27 March 2007

4. Appointed on 14 July 2008

5. Resigned on 14 July 2008

6. Appointed on 2 Oct 2008

7. Resigned on 1 February 2007

8. Resigned on 27 March 2007

For the years ended 31 December 2008 and 2007, no
emoluments were paid to the Company’s directors as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office and no fee or any other
emolument was waived by the Company’s directors.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooo

12. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2007: one) are directors whose emolument is
disclosed in Note 11. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the other two (2007: four) individuals is as

follows:
2008 2007
ooo0o0o ooood
HK$’000 HK$’000
ood ood
Salaries and other emoluments ooooooo 518 1,025
Contributions to retirement benefits Ooooooon
scheme 13 36
531 1,061
The emoluments of two (2007: four) non-director
individuals with the highest emoluments are within the
following band:
2008 2007
o000 ooood
Number Number
oo oo

HK$Nil — HK$1,000,000 ooooi
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13. LOSS PER SHARE

96

(a) Basic loss per share

(b)

0

(i)

From continuing and discontinued operations

It is based on the loss attributable to equity
holders of the Company of approximately
HK$9,711,000 (2007: HK$5,376,000) and the
weighted average of 200,000,000 (2007:
200,000,000) ordinary shares in issue during
the year.

From continuing operations

[t is based on loss for the year from
continuing operations of approximately
HK$7,695,000 (2007: HK$2,864,000) and the
weighted average of 200,000,000 (2007:
200,000,000) ordinary shares is issued during
the year.

Diluted loss per share

Diluted loss per share is not presented as there
were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2008 and
2007.
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(b) OO
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go

ggono
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gooooooooo
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9,711,0000 OO O O O
0 oo 53760000 OO
0 0O 0200,000,0000 O
goboooogoao
0 0O 200,000,0000 OO
ooooobon

oooooon

gooooooboogono
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7,695,0000 OO 0O O O
O 00 2864,0000 OO
0 0O 0200,000,0000 O
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goooooo

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computer
Leasehold and other  Furniture Motor
improvements equipment and fixtures  vehicles Total
oooo ooo
good good ooooo ao 0o
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
gon gon goo goo oo
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15. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

98

(i)

For the year ended 31 December 2008

On 16 May 2006, Surplus Trade Investment
Limited (“Surplus Trade”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity
transfer agreement with Mr. Wong Chi Wai (“Mr.
Wong”), an independent third party. Pursuant to
the agreement, Surplus Trade agreed to acquire
the entire equity interest of First Preview Limited
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“First Preview Group”) for a consideration of
HK$42,000,000. First Preview Group is engaged
in hotel business.

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the
Group paid an aggregate amount of
HK$10,000,000 which was retained as a deposit
for the acquisition of First Preview Group. As
certain conditions set out in such equity transfer
agreement were not fulfilled, the transaction were
not completed. According to the terms of the
transfer agreement, Mr. Wong should refund the
deposit of HK$10,000,000 to the Group.

During the year, HK$1,000,000 was refunded to
the Group. An amount of HK$3,000,000 has been
agreed to be refunded in 2009 and is included in
trade and other receivables. The remaining
balance of HK$5,370,000 stated at fair value by
discounting at market interest rate will be refunded
by December 2010 and the fair value adjustment
of HK$630,000 has been charged to profit or loss
(Note 7).
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Oo0oooooooaoad
Surplus Trade Investment
Limitedd Surplus Trade (110 O
O O O OWong Chi Wail O
MWongD OO OOODOO
O 00odoooaoodgo
Surplus Trade O 0O O First
Preview Limitedd O O O O O
0 O 00 First Preview 0O IO
0000000 d42,000,000
O O0First Previewd O O O
ogoooo

Oo0dooDooooaoag
oooDoooooooao
O 0 0O10,000,0000 OOO O
O 0O O O 0O O First Previewd
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00000 DO10,000,0000 O
oood

o oog b odgbogaod
1,000,0000 ODOO O oOOao
0000000 odaso000,000
gobobobooooooboo
gooboooooobooboog
obobobooooooo
O 0O 05,370,0000 O O0OO
gboooooobooobog
gesoooo0 0 ODOoOooOOoaO
gooobooboooobor



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

15. DEPOSITS FOR ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

15. 00000 ooooug o

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2007 (i) JOD0DODOOO0O00OO0

On 30 March 2005, the Group entered into an
equity transfer agreement with Mighty Wish
Services Limited (“Mighty Wish”) and an
independent third party (the “Equity Transfer
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Equity Transfer
Agreement, the Group agreed to acquire the entire
equity interest of both Mighty Wish and Shanghai
Ruijin  Translation Company Limited (“Translation
Company”) from this independent third party for a
consideration of HK$19,500,000 subject to the
conditions that the Translation Company would be
reorganised as a wholly owned subsidiary of
Mighty Wish or with prior written consent of the
Group, under the PRC laws and regulations, that
the Translation Company would be legally and
validly converted into a wholly owned foreign
enterprise within 90 days after the execution of
the Equity Transfer Agreement.

During the year ended 31 December 2005, the
Group paid an aggregate amount of
HK$12,710,000 which was retained as a deposit
for the acquisition of Mighty Wish and Translation
Company. The transactions would not be
completed by the long stop date as the conditions
set out above were not fulfiled. Such deposit
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2008
and 2007 and recoverable from the independent
third party under the terms of the Equity Transfer
Agreement.

As at 31 December 2008, the deposit of
HK$12,710,000 was reclassified to assets held for
sale as it is an asset of the Disposal Group (Note
19). The balance as at 31 December 2007
included the deposit of HK$10,000,000 as stated
in Note 15(i).

ooooooooono ooooooo

goooboon

gobooooobogoo
0 0O O O Mighty Wish Services
LimitedD Mighty WishTd O O
gododooooooooan
omoocooooO4dooo
ooooooopooogao
0 0 019,500,0000 O O OO
00000 0Mighty WishO
gooooooooo™o
000 ooooood
ocooooooogooao
Mighty WishO O OO QOQOQOOd
gododooooooooan
cooocoooooboogo
oooooooooboogao
oo oouoooogaa
Ooooooooo

ooooooogoao
Cooooopooodg
0 012,710,0000 OO0 O
O 00 0O 0Mighty Wish
Cooooopooodg
Oo0ooooooooog
cooooopoood
ooooooogoao

O

O

OoOooogooogoao

ooobooooooao
goooboooooobao
gooooboooboogo

goboboboobobgooo
gobooboooobaog
o 0o o0 oobo b b o
12,710,000 0 000000
goob0ooogotemao
obobobooooooo
ooooooospoooo
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O00000
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
gooooooo
16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 16. D OO0 O O00O0O0O
The Company
ood
2008 2007
oooono ooooad
HK$’000 HK$'000
oo oo
Unlisted shares, at cost 0o0o0ooooooo 13,765 13,765
Less: Impairment loss opooooadd (13,764) (13,764)
1 1
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googog

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

goooooo

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at

31 December 2008 were as follows:

16. DO O0Ooooooood

gogogoooooboobbbbo
goooboooboobon

Proportion of ownership interest

oopoooo
Particulars of
issued and
Country of paid up capital Group’s Held by Held by
incorporation and debt effective the the
Name of company and operation securities interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
oooogo
ooooo oooogo oood ooo oooo
oooo oooo oooogd oooo oooo oooo oooo
Besto Investment Limited* The British Virgin US$14,833 100% 100% — Investment holding
Islands (“BVI")
Besto Investment Limited* ooooooao 14,8330 O 100% 100% — 0oooo
Surplus Trade Investment BVI US$1,000 100% 100% — Investment holding
Limited
Surplus Trade Investment opoooooo 1,0000 O 100% 100% — oooo
Limited
SJTU Sunway Information PRC RMB25,000,000 100% — 100% Provision of
Technology Co., Ltd.* translation
services and sales
of general
software
oooooooooooo oo 0ooo 100% — 100% ODOoOOOoOoOO
oooo-~ 25,000,0000 oooooo
SUNV (Bejing) Century PRC RMB6,000,000 100% — 100% Provision of
Information Technology Co., translation
Lta* services
oooooooooooo oo ooo 100% — 100% ODOO0OO0OO0OO
oooo-x 6,000,0000
New Champion International BVI US$500 100% - 100% Investment holding
Ltd.”
New Champion International ooooooo 5000 O 100% — 100% O OO0

Ltd.”
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ooooooo

16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Proportion of ownership interest

16. DO O0oooooood

oopoooo
Particulars of
issued and
Country of paid up capital Group’s Held by Held by
incorporation and debt effective the the
Name of company and operation securities interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
oooogo
ooooo oooogo oood ooo oooo
oooo oooo ooood oooo oooo 0000 oooo
Mainca International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% — 100% Software
development
business and
trading of
computer
equipment
oooooooo oo 100 100% — 100% ODOooOOOoOoOO
oooooo
S & D Management Limited Hong Kong HK$10 100% — 100% Centralisation of
administrative
expenses
S & D Management Limited oo 100 0O 100% — 100% ODOOO0OOO0O0
S & D Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% — 100% Provision of instant
on-screen hotel
entertainment
programme
S & D Enterprises Limited (Rl 100 100% — 100% ODOODOCOOO
oooo
Winner Zone Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% — 100% Provision of instant
on-screen hotel
entertainment
programme
oooooo oo 100 100% — 100% 00000000
oooog
Beijing Guoxin Sunway IT Co., PRC RMB2,000,000 51% - 51% Provision of
Lta.” translation
services
gooooooooo oo 0ooo 51% — 51% O00O0O0O0O0O
oooo-~ 2,000,0000
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16. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 16. DO OO0 O0O0O00OO

Proportion of ownership interest

oopoooo
Particulars of
issued and
Country of paid up capital Group’s Held by Held by
incorporation and debt effective the the
Name of company and operation securities interest Company subsidiary Principal activity
oooogo
ooooo oooogo oood ooo oooo
oooo oooo ooood oooo oooo 0000 oooo
Shanghai Sunway Century IT  PRC RMB5,000,000 90% - 90% Provision of
Co., Ltd.* translation
services
gooooooooo oo 0ooo 90% — 90% ODOoOOooo0o
oooo-~ 5,000,0000
Fujian Multi Language PRC RMB5,000,000 75% - 75% Provision of
Translation Service Company translation
Limited* services
gooooooooooo* oo 0ooog 75% — 75% 000000
5,000,0000
Forever Trend Development Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Administration
Limited
oooooooo oo 100 100% 100% oooo
Max Honour International Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Trading of
Limited computerised
smart sockets
and related
accessories
gooooooo oo 100 100% 100% goooooo
ooooooo

* To be disposed of pursuant to an agreement entered on 2 March 2009. * DO00D0DO0OD0D0O0oDOooOoOooDooooOooaog
ooo
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ooooooo
17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. D000 O0O0O0O0oO0O
The Group The Company
oog oog
2008 2007 2008 2007
gooo0 ooooo ooooo oooogdg
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
gog ogg oog oog
Trade receivables ooon 8,126 11,308 - —
Less: Allowance for ooooaoao
doubtful debts — (11,308) — —
8,126 — - —
Other debtors oooon 30 30 30 30
Amounts due from ooooon
subsidiaries (Note) oooooo - — 15,674 11,370
Loans and receivables OoO0ooOooo 8,156 30 15,704 11,400
Deposits and prepayments 000000 3,335 603 140 234
11,491 633 15,844 11,634

Note: The amounts due from the subsidiaries (net of accumulated ooooooo0o0oooDooDoDOoOOooOooOooaon

impairment losses of HK$22,937,000 (2007: HK$20,500,000) are 22,937,0000 00O O O O O O 0O20,500,0000

unsecured, interest free and has no fixed repayment terms. 0 oooooDoooooooooo

()  The average credit period to the Group’s trade () OoOOoOOoOOoODDOODOOOOO
debtors is 60 days. 0 06000
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

(i)

The movements

17. 00 00goooggad

ERERE

in the allowance for doubtful (i)

debts during the year, including both specific and
collective loss components, are as follows:

goobobooooobooboog
ooooobooobo

The Group
oo
2008 2007
ooo0do ooood
HK$’000 HK$’'000
ooo aoo
At beginning of year 0o 11,308 10,515
Uncollective amount written off OO0 0O O0O0O (11,308) —
Additional allowance for dddooooooooan - 57
impairment losses (Note 7) ooord

Exchange adjustment oooad - 736
At end of year 00 - 11,308

At 31 December 2008, the Group’s trade
receivables of HK$Nil (2007: HK$11,308,000) were
individually determined to be impaired. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Oo0oooooooogoao
ooooooooooooo
O 00 00o11,308,0000 OO
Oo0o0o0oDoooooooao
oo0oooooooooao
oogd

(i)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as (i) OOOOODOOoOOOoOon
follows.

The Group
oo
2008 2007
00000 ooooo
HK$’000 HK$’000
ooo Oooo

Within 30 days
31 to 60 days
61 to 90 days

300 00O
310 600
610 900

2,356 —
3,772 —
1,998 —

8,126 —
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17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. 000 O0oooooao
(Continued) 000
(iv) The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are (v ODOOoOoDoDooooooad
neither individually nor collectively considered to 0oDooDoooooooao
be impaired is as follows: oodn
The Group
0oao
2008 2007

D0D000 00000
HK$°000 HK$’'000

oo ooo
Neither past due nor impaired ooooooa 6,128 -
Less than 1 month past due ooooooo 1,998 —

8,126 —
The trade receivables relate to a major customer Oo0ooooooooooan
that has a good track record with the Group. ooooooooooog
Based on past experience, management believes oooooooooooad
that no impairment allowance is necessary in Oo0ooooooooooan
respect of this balance as there have not been a 00000 O0ooooaoaon
significant change in credit quality and the balance oooooooooooad
is still considered fully recoverable. The Group oooooooooooag
does not hold any collateral over this balance. 00000000
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ooooooo
18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. DO OO0 OoOoogad
The Group
0oao
2008 2007
ogoooo ooooboad
HK$°000 HK$’000
aooo ooo
Cash and bank balances: oooooooo
— Hong Kong dollars —aoa 5,073 502
— Renminbi (included in assets classifed — 0 0000000 0O0O
as held for sale) (Note 19) 0oo0oooooied 178 173
Cash and cash equivalents OO0o0Oooooo 5,251 675
At the balance sheet date, the Group’s cash and bank Oo0o0o0bOoooDbOoomon
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted oooooboooobono
to RMB156,000 (2007: RMB162,000). The RMB is not O 01500000 00000000
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under d1e2,0000 (OO ODOO0oooOoad
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations ooooooooboooooooo
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Oooooooboooooooono
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted 0o0o0DoODO0oOoooODmooooao
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks ooooooooooobogoao
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business. ooooooooooono
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19. ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE/ 19. 00 0OO0OO0OOOOOOOO

LIABILITIES DIRECTLY ASSOCIATED WITH Oo0oooooooooao
ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE O
As explained in Note 9, the assets and liabilities of the ooooouooooooooano
Disposal Group were classified as held for sale and Ooooooooooooooao
liabilities directly associated with assets classified as 0o0Do0DoDO0DoDOoDOoDoDOoooaon
held for sale respectively as at 31 December 2008. Oodoooooooooooao
They are presented as follows: oooooooo
2008
ooood
HK$’000
ood
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 78) 00000 Ooooogoiisnd 178
Deposits for acquisition of subsidiaries 000000 O00ooooitso
(Note 15) 12,710
Assets classified as held for sale 0oo0ooooao 12,888
Trade and other payables 0O0O0ooooooo 10,587
Bank loan, unsecured (Note 20) 0oooo0oogoozod 15,960
Other loan payables ooooon 527

Liabilities directly associated with Oooooooood

assets classified as held for sale Oo0ooooao 27,074
Minority interests 0ooooo (1,476)
Exchange reserve goooo (3,641)
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googog

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
goooooao

20. BANK LOANS

20 0000

The Group
oo
2008 2007
goodno ooood
HK$°000 HK$’000

aooo ooao
Bank loan (unsecured) ooooooooao 15,960 14,980
Reclassified to liabilities directly O0000000O0oooon
associated with assets held for sale ooooooogoon
(Note 19) o0omnoiton (15,960) —
— 14,980
The unsecured bank loan matured on 30 May 2005 ooooooooooooooo
and the Group defaulted on the repayment of such oooOoooooooooooao
bank loan. The unsecured bank loans of dodoooouoooooooo
RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to HK$15,960,000) (2007: 0 14,000,00000 O O O 15,960,000
RMB14,000,000 (equivalent to HK$14,980,000)) has O 0000 O0o0ooo oo
been overdue and is bearing interest at 0.7965% (2007: 14,000,00000 O O 0O 14,980,0000
0.7965%) per month. The lender has not agreed to 00 O0oO0o0oOOn0doo.7oes
waive its right to demand immediate payment. The 0oodoodooogoreest od oo
lender has obtained a court ruling to enforce the uodoobobbooooooooo
repayment of the loan plus the interest due. The ddooooooogoooooo
unsecured bank loan is guaranteed by a subsidiary of a oooOoooooooooooon

former shareholder.

goboobooboobooobon
oooogoo
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O00000
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
ooooooo
21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. 00000 ooooao
The Group The Company
oo ood
2008 2007 2008 2007
o000 ooooo oooodo oogoad
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ood aood oo oo
Amounts due to subsidiaries 0O 0O 0000 - — 8,136 10,162
Trade creditors oooad 7,359 395 - —
Bank loan interest payable O OOO00O00O0O - 3,526 - —
Other creditors and accrued O O0000O0O
charges oooog 1,320 5,832 1,199 1,081
Financial liabilites measured O O0OO0O0OO0OO0OO
at amortised cost ooood 8,679 9,753 9,335 11,243
The amounts due to the subsidiaries are unsecured, obooboboooooooooao
non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms of oooodoooooooooon
repayment. All of the trade and other payables are gooooooooooggod
expected to be settled within one year. Included in oooooodooooooon
trade and other payables are trade creditors with the goooduooogoodaood
following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date: ogooo
The Group
ooo
2008 2007

oooog bocoooao
HK$’000 HK$’000

ooo ooo
Within 30 days 30000 1,978 —
31-60 days 310 600 3,169 —
61-90 days 610 900 2,212 —
Over 360 days 3600 0 O - 395
7,359 395
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000000
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
ooooooo
22. SHARE CAPITAL 22, [0 [
2008 2007
ooggg ooogg
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
oooaod oad oooaod 00
’000 HK$’000 000 HK$’000
oad ooad oad oon
Authorised: Ooo
Ordinary shares of O00do.otdo
HK$0.01 each ooon 4,000,000 40,000 4,000,000 40,000
Issued and fully paid: 0O OQOQOOO
At end of year 00 200,000 2,000 200,000 2,000
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goooog

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

ooooooo
23. RESERVES 23. 0O
(a) Reserves of the Company (@ DOoooo

Share-based

Share Share Capital compensation Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total
goood
o0 oo oooo goood gooo od
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
god ooad god god ood ood
At 1 January 2007 Jooooooooo 2,000 30,224 - 1,742 (83,335) 631
Total expense recognised gooooooag
directly in equity: ooood
Loss for the year oooo — - - — (861) (861)
Lapse of share options oooood — — — (1,742) 1,742 -
- - - (1,742) 881 (861)
At 31 December 2007 gooooo
ooooooo 2,000 30,224 — — (32,454) (230)
Total expense recognised goooooood
directly in equity: ooooao
Capital contribution by a ooooooo
shareholder in the form of ooo
interest-free loans - - 2,144 - - 2,144
Loss for the year oooo - - - - (7,711) (7,711)
- - 2,144 - (7,711)  (5,567)
At 31 December 2008 oooooo
goooooao 2,000 30,224 2,144 - (40,165) (5,797)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium
account of the Company are distributable to
the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off
its debts as they fall in the ordinary course
of business.
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gogognd

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

goooooo

23. RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the capital
contribution by a shareholder in the form of
interest free loans. The amounts are
estimated by discounting the nominal value
of their non-interesting bearing loans to the
Group at current market interest rate for
similar financial instruments.

Capital surplus

Capital surplus mainly represents the waiver
of loans from the shareholders of Besto
Investment Limited, which was contributed
as part of the capital to SJTU Sunway
Information Technology Co., Ltd.

General reserve

According to the articles of association of
the subsidiaries in the PRC, the subsidiaries
are required to set up a general reserve and
the transfer to this fund are at the discretion
of the subsidiaries. This fund can be utilised
to acquire property, plant and equipment, to
increase current assets and may be
converted into paid-in capital. Transfers from
this fund are subject to approval by its board
of directors.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations. The reserve is dealt within
in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in Note 3(p).

23. oo d

() 0OODDDOO0DOO000

(i) 0000

ooooooboono
gooboboooooao
gooooooooo
ooooooboono
goboooooobooo

(i) 0000

00000 0O OBesto
Investment Limited O O
0ooooooooao
Oo0ooooooooo
oooooooooao
ood

(ivy 0000

gboboooboooboao
goobbooonn
ooobDbooon
gboboooogoboo
gooboooonn
ooobbOoOoon
gooooooono
goobbooon
obooooobono
gboboooogoboo
goooboobon

OOo0oooogooogoao
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Odooodan
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)
ooooooo
23. RESERVES (Continued) 23. 0 0OOO0O
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued) (b) OODOOOOOOO0OO
(vi) Share-based compensation reserve i) JO000000
The fair value of the actual or estimated Ooo0o0Dooooooao
number of unexercised share options granted oooooobooo
to employees of the company recognised in oooooobooodga
accordance with the accounting policy i ooooooad
adopted for share based payments in Note oooooooooad
3(a)(ii). oood
(vii) Distributability of reserves (vii) 0000
At 31 December 2008 and 2007, the Ooo0o0Dooooooao
Company did not have any reserves available Oooooooood
for distribution to equity holders of the oooooobooodga
Company. Ooo0o0Dooooooao
ooo
24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS 24, 0000
Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in 000000 0ooooooooag
the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate Oo0ooDoooooooooo
in a defined contribution retirement scheme (the 0000000 oDoooooag
“Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal government Jo0gmoooOgooooooao
whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute OOo0Oo0o0Do0OoOo0ooooooan
to the Scheme for the retirement benefits of eligible 000000 ooooooooag
employees. Contributions made are calculated based 00000 D019%034%0 000
on 19% to 34% of the payroll costs of the eligible O0o00ooooooooooo
employees. The PRC municipal government is Ooo0oooooooooooo
responsible for the administration of the Scheme. The ooooooooo
PRC subsidiaries are not liable to any retirement
benefits beyond its obligation to contribute.
For providing retirement benefits to its employees in Oododoooooooooo
Hong Kong, the Group has set up a mandatory OoooDoooooooooao
provident fund (“MPF”) scheme which is available to all Mooo0OoOooooooooog
Hong Kong employees. The Group’s and the Ooo0o0ooooooooooan
employees’ contributions to the MPF scheme are based 0o0Do0DoDO0DoDOoDOoDoDOoooaon
on 5% of the relevant income of the relevant employees 00000000000 05%
in accordance with the requirements of the Mandatory O0O0O0o0oo0O0O0ooOoOoooooa
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance and related OO0OoO0oOoOooOnoooo4,00000O
regulations. Contributions made to the above schemes ooognooossooon omaad
by the Group amounted to approximately HK$94,000 O0oooo0ooobooonooad

(2007: HK$58,000) for the year. No other scheme for
the retirement benefit is participated by the Group.
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O00000

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollors)

ooooooo

25. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25. D000 oooood
TRANSACTIONS
A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) of the Company 0oodooooooooooao
was adopted on 25 November 2003 for the purpose of 0000000 00O0omo o
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants, 0doooooooooooo
including the executive directors of the Company, who 00o0o0o0o0o0ooDooOoooa
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Ooooooooooooooan

ood

The Board of Directors of the Company may, at their Oo0oDoDo0ooooooon
discretion, grant option to the eligible participants Oo0o0ooooooooao
including any employees, directors, suppliers,